HELLENIC BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LTD

ΗB

Interim Pillar III Disclosures for the six-month period ended 30th June 2021

Announcement dated 22nd October 2021 is attached.

Attachments:

- 1. Interim Pillar III Disclosures for the six-month period ended 30th June 2021
- 2. Interim Pillar III Disclosures

Non Regulated

Publication Date: 22/10/2021



22nd October 2021

ANNOUNCEMENT

Subject: <u>Interim Pillar III Disclosures for the six-month period ended</u> 30th June 2021

Hellenic Bank Public Company Limited (the "Bank") announces that the Interim Pillar III Disclosures for the six-month period ended 30th June 2021 have been posted on the Bank's website at www.hellenicbank.com (Investor Relations).

Please find attached the Interim Pillar III Disclosures for the six-month period ended 30th June 2021.

HELLENIC BANK PUBLIC COMPANY LTD



Hellenic Bank Group

INTERIM PILLAR III DISCLOSURES

for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021

October 2021

Table of Contents

1. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK	3
1.1 Introduction	3
1.2 Basel III framework	3
1.3 Minimum loss coverage for Non-Performing Exposures	6
1.4 Implications of the COVID-19 outbreak	7
2. KEY METRICS	8
3. SCOPE OF APPLICATION	10
4. DISCLOSURE OF OWN FUNDS	12
4.1 Regulatory Capital	12
4.2 Template EU CC1 - Composition of regulatory own funds	15
4.3 Comparison of institutions' own funds and capital and leverage ratios with and without the app transitional arrangements for IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs, and with and without the application of the treatment in accordance with Article 468 CRR	temporary
4.4 Disclosure of countercyclical capital buffers	25
5. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT	27
5.1 Disclosure of overview of risk-weighted exposure amounts	27
5.2 Disclosure of the use of credit risk mitigation techniques	
5.4 Disclosure of credit risk quality	
5.4.1 Non-performing exposures	33
5.4.2 Forborne exposures	53
5.5 Disclosure of exposures to counterparty credit risk	57
5.6 Disclosures on measures applied in response to the COVID-19 outbreak	58
6. INVESTMENT, MARKET AND LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT	
6.1 Disclosure of liquidity requirements	63
6.2 Disclosure of the use of standardised approach for market risk	
6.3 Disclosure of information on exposures to interest rate risk on positions not held	
in the trading book (Article 448 CRR)	69
7. SECURITISATIONS	70
8. LEVERAGE RATIO	74
8.1 Summary reconciliation of accounting assets and leverage ratio exposures	75
8.2 Leverage ratio common disclosure	
8.3 Split-up of on balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives, SFTs and exempted exposures)	78
9. MINIMUM REQUIREMENT FOR OWN FUNDS AND ELIGIBLE LIABILITIES	79
10. 2021 ECB SREP STRESS TEST	79
APPENDIX A – LIST OF TABLES/TEMPLATES	80

1. REGULATORY FRAMEWORK

1.1 Introduction

The Interim Pillar III disclosures for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 of the Hellenic Bank Group (the "Group") that are presented in this document are prepared in accordance with the Capital Requirements Regulation (CRR) and Capital Requirements Directive (CRD IV) amended where applicable by CRR II and CRD V, and EBA Guidelines on Pillar III disclosures effective from 30 June 2021.

The present report relates to the Interim Pillar III disclosures of the Banking Group of the Hellenic Bank Group, applicable for this reporting period, which are prepared in accordance with the Basel III regulatory framework.

For more information refer to Pillar III Disclosures for the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 as well as the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 which are available on the Bank's official website: www.hellenicbank.com (Investor Relations).

Numbers presented throughout this document may not add up or cross reference due to rounding.

Incorporation and Principal Activity

Hellenic Bank Public Company Limited (the "Bank") was incorporated and is domiciled in Cyprus in 1976 and is a public company in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Law (Cap. 113), the Cyprus Stock Exchange Laws and Regulations and the Income Tax Laws. The Bank is the holding company of the Group.

The principal activity of the Group is the provision of a wide range of banking and financial services, which include financial, investment and insurance services, custodian and factoring services as well as management and disposal of properties.

1.2 Basel III framework

Effective from 1 January 2014, the European Parliament's and Council's Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) and the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (CRR) of 26 June 2013 form the European regulatory package designed to transpose the new capital, liquidity and leverage standards of Basel III (CRR) into the European Union's legal framework.

The CRR establishes the prudential requirements for capital, liquidity and leverage that credit institutions need to abide by and is immediately binding on all European Union Member States. The Directive 2013/36/EU (CRD IV) governs access to deposit-taking activities and internal governance arrangements including remuneration, board composition and transparency, while it also sets out additional capital buffer requirements. Unlike the CRR, the CRD IV has been transposed into national law.

The CRR permits a transitional period for certain of the enhanced capital requirements and certain other measures, such as the leverage ratio, which are largely fully effective from 1 January 2018, and some other transitional provisions with phase-in until 2024 (the latest).

1.2.1 Capital Requirements Regulation amendments (CRR II & CRD V)

On 7 June 2019, the EU banking reform package has been published in the Official Journal of the European Union which includes the Directive (EU) 2019/878 (CRD V) and the Regulation (EU) No 2019/876 (CRR II), entered into force on 27 June 2019.

The Regulation (EU) No 2019/876 (CRR II) includes several amendments regarding the leverage ratio, the net stable funding ratio, requirements for own funds and eligible liabilities, counterparty credit risk, market risk, exposures to central counterparties, exposures to collective investment undertakings, large exposures, reporting and disclosure requirements, among others. The majority of CRR II provisions are applicable from 28 June 2021.

The Directive (EU) 2019/878 (CRD V) amends the CRD IV as regards exempted entities, financial holding companies, mixed financial holding companies, remuneration, supervisory measures and powers and capital conservation measures. The Directive has been transposed into national law.

1.2.2 COVID-19 pandemic implications on capital

The CRR II amendments that came into force from June 2021, are additional requirements to those introduced in June 2020 by Regulation (EU) 2020/873 (CRR "quick-fix"). The ECB announced a package of capital relief measures to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the EU banking sector.

As part of the European Central Bank's (ECB) capital measures for COVID-19 pandemic, the Bank received an amendment to Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP) 2019, effective from March 2020, regarding the composition of the Pillar II additional own funds requirements. Pillar II requirement should be met with 56,25% of CET 1 Capital, 18,75% of Additional Tier 1 Capital, and 25% of Tier 2 Capital.

In addition, as per Central Bank of Cyprus (CBC) circular dated 7 May 2020, the fully loaded O-SII buffer for the Bank remains at 1,5% but the phasing-in of the O-SII buffer is deferred by 12 months, from the original 4 years, as a relief measure aiming to further assist corporations and households to deal with the economic consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic. Therefore, the O-SII buffer will be fully phased-in on 1 January 2023 instead of 1 January 2022.

In June 2020, Regulation (EU) 2020/873 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 24 June 2020, came into force, amending Regulation (EU) No. 575/2013 and Regulation (EU) No 2019/876 as regards certain adjustments in response to the COVID-19 pandemic (CRR – Capital Requirements Regulation – "quick-fix"). The CRR "quick-fix" is part of a series of capital relief measures to mitigate the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on EU Member States credit institutions.

The main amendments which affect the Group's capital adequacy ratio include the acceleration of the implementation of the new SME discount factor under CRR II introduced earlier in June 2020, instead of June 2021, extending the IFRS 9 transitional arrangements by two years and introducing further relief measures to CET 1 by allowing to fully add back to CET 1 any increase in expected credit losses recognised in 2020 and 2021, and also advancing the implementation of the application of prudential treatment of software assets as amended by CRR II to 2020 instead of 2021.

In further detail, IFRS 9 transitional arrangements have been extended by two years (up until 31 December 2024). Post 1 January 2020 expected credit losses on Stages 1 and 2 exposures are added back in CET 1 in a phased-out period of five years. For the years 2020 and 2021 the portion added back is 100%, reducing to 75% for 2022, to 50% for 2023 and to 25% for 2024.

As per CRR "quick-fix" the application of the SME supporting factor, which was introduced earlier in June 2020, rather than June 2021, relates to the amendments to CRR Article 501 as introduced by CRR II. This allows for a more favourable treatment of certain exposures to SMEs and the application in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic would provide incentives to credit institutions to increase much-needed lending.

1.2.2 COVID-19 pandemic implications on capital (continued)

Regarding the prudential treatment of software assets, as per Regulation (EU) No 2019/876 institutions are no longer required to fully deduct software assets from CET 1, subject to certain criteria, and the portion of the asset not deducted from CET 1 to be risk weighted at 100%. This prudential treatment came into force in the last quarter of 2020, following the publication of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2020/2176 in the Official Journal of the European Union.

Additionally, the CRR "quick-fix" permits institutions to temporarily add back unrealised gains or losses on exposures to central governments, to regional governments or to local authorities and to public sector entities, excluding those financial assets that are credit-impaired measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, during the period from 1 January 2020 to 31 of December 2022. The Group has not adopted this temporary relief, for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Moreover, the Regulation permits transitional arrangements of Article 114 of the CRR. For exposures to Central Banks and Central Governments denominated in another Member State's domestic currency a rating-based risk weight is assigned between 0% and 150%. Currently, the Group does not benefit from this amendment, as it has no exposures to Central Banks and Central Governments denominated in another Member State's domestic currency.

1.2.3 Pillar III disclosures

The Pillar III Disclosures of the Group set out both quantitative and qualitative disclosures required in accordance with Part Eight "Disclosures by Institutions" of the CRR as amended by CRR II.

As per Regulation (EU) No 2019/876 (CRR II) amending Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (CRR), Article 434a mandates the EBA to develop draft implementing technical standards (ITS) specifying uniform disclosure formats and associated instructions in accordance with which the disclosures required under Titles II and III of Part Eight of the CRR shall be made. Following this mandate, further disclosure guidelines have been published by European Banking Authority (EBA) in the "Final draft implementing technical standards on public disclosures by institutions of the information referred to in Titles II and III of Part Eight of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013" (EBA/ITS/2020/04).

The development of a comprehensive EBA ITS on Pillar III disclosures constitutes an update of EBA's strategy regarding its policy on institutions' Pillar III disclosures. The key goals of this strategy and the new EBA ITS are to provide a single Pillar III disclosure framework, promote consistency and comparability across institutions, facilitate access on key prudential data and provide integration of Pillar III quantitative disclosure data with supervisory reporting.

Approval

As per the Group's formal disclosure policy, the Interim Pillar III Disclosures for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, are approved by the Board of Directors (BoD) following review by the Board Risk Management Committee (BRMC) and the Audit Committee (AC), prior to their public disclosure.

Media

The Interim Pillar III disclosures for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 are published on the Bank's official website: www.hellenicbank.com (Investor Relations).

Comparatives

Comparatives presented in the report are restated, where considered necessary, to conform with changes in the presentation of the current period.

1.3 Minimum loss coverage for Non-Performing Exposures

In March 2018, ECB published an NPE addendum which supplements the NPL Guidance by specifying the ECB's supervisory expectations when assessing a bank's levels of prudential provisions for non-performing exposures. The ECB will in this context assess, among other things, the length of time an exposure has been classified as non-performing (vintage) as well as the collateral held.

In April 2019, ECB issued Regulation (EU) 2019/630 of the European Parliament and of the Council amending Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 as regards minimum loss coverage for non-performing exposures with an immediate effective date. The Regulation prescribes minimum provision coverages based on vintage and collateral held for loans that have originated after 26 April 2019.

Additionally, Hellenic Bank received a letter from the ECB in 2019, as part of normal supervisory activities, containing qualitative and quantitative elements, focused on ensuring it is managing and addressing NPEs in line with supervisory expectations with regards to the legacy NPE stock (loans that have defaulted prior to April 2018).

Taking into account the specificities of the supervisory expectations, the Bank will thus be asked to inform the ECB of any differences between their practices and the prudential provisioning expectations, as part of the SREP supervisory dialogue. Within the annual SREP discussions ECB may impose Pillar 2 measures on banks in case ECB is not confident with measure taken by the individual bank with respect to all the above.

The ECB, as part of its supervisory role, has agreed with the Bank the prudential provision shortfalls subject to Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 treatment with reference date 31 December 2020. This amount has been directly deducted from own funds resulting in a decrease in the Group's CET1 ratio by approximately 35 bps.

1.4 Implications of the COVID-19 outbreak

The COVID-19 pandemic which started affecting Cyprus since March 2020 and remains until today, led the European and global economy to an unprecedented sharp recession. Cyprus has been greatly affected by the global pandemic as well, both in terms of health and economic impact.

The large emergency fiscal package of the Cyprus Government has contributed in preserving jobs and providing liquidity for households and firms. Similarly, the domestic banking sector entered the crisis with comfortable capital and liquidity buffers and, together with the support of the ECB's accommodative monetary policy, facilitated the provision of credit and support to the economy.

The Cyprus's GDP declined by 5,1% (source: Cyprus Statistical Services) during 2020, compared to contractions of 5,9% and 6,3% for the EU and EZ economies, respectively. Cyprus real GDP increased by 5,4% year on year in the first half of 2021, while expecting a solid rebound through the second half of 2021.

Forward looking indicators suggest that the recovery's momentum is strengthened further. Nevertheless, fears of the Delta variant or the emergence of any other variants, continue to imply downside risks to the recovery. However, in countries with significant vaccine coverage, despite the uptick in the number of cases linked to the spread of the Delta variant, serious cases and deaths are only slightly increasing. In Cyprus, the vaccination campaign gradually accelerated in April 2021, reaching a significant coverage of completed vaccinations in August 2021. With better control over the health situation, we can expect a more sustainable recovery in economic activity in the second half of the year.

Risks to the recovery seem more balanced than before but still skewed to the downside. The profile of 2021 outlook will still be largely determined by the spread of the virus. The availability of a vaccine does not alter this profile but reduces the extreme risk in the Bank's baseline scenario. The pace of growth will be dependent again on the degree of support from Government and EU economic policies. Although the developments on COVID-19 effective vaccines raise hopes, significant uncertainties remain. If new infections begin to surge or intensify, longer lasting lockdowns might become necessary, with adverse economic consequences.

The Bank monitors the situation, taking all necessary measures to mitigate the impact on its operations and financial performance.

Further details of the COVID-19 impact on the Group are disclosed in Note 3 of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020, Note 38 and Section 1.1.4 "COVID-19 related disclosures" in the "Additional information for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021" of the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021.

COVID-19 related disclosures in Interim Pillar III Disclosures

Section 1.2.2 "COVID-19 pandemic implications on capital" of this report includes the impact of supervisory measures in reaction to the COVID-19 pandemic on regulatory capital.

Section 5.6 "Disclosures on measures applied in response to the COVID-19 outbreak" of this report includes COVID-19 related disclosures regarding exposures subject to moratorium.

2. KEY METRICS

The table below provides the key prudential and regulatory information and ratios covered by the amended CRR II. They comprise of own funds, RWAs, capital ratios, capital buffers requirements, requirements based on SREP, leverage rate, liquidity coverage ratio and net stable funding ratio.

For all periods presented below, except for 31 December 2020, capital ratios and leverage ratio disclosed are as per the regulatory submissions and exclude unaudited profits. Corresponding ratios including unaudited profits are provided in the next table.

Template EU KM1 - Key metrics template

		а	b	С	d	е
		30-Jun-21 ¹	31-Mar-21 ¹	31-Dec-20 ²	30-Sep-20 ¹	30-Jun-20 ¹
	Available own funds (amounts €000)³					
1	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital	1.076.324	1.104.915	1.111.714	1.027.542	1.025.617
2	Tier 1 capital	1.205.990	1.234.582	1.241.380	1.157.208	1.155.283
3	Total capital	1.205.990	1.234.582	1.241.380	1.157.208	1.155.283
	Risk-weighted exposure amounts ³					
4	Total risk exposure amount	5.581.753	5.541.109	5.556.267	5.285.622	5.259.799
	Capital ratios (as a percentage of risk-weighted expos	ure amount)				
5	Common Equity Tier 1 ratio (%)	19,28%	19,94%	20,01%	19,44%	19,50%
6	Tier 1 ratio (%)	21,61%	22,28%	22,34%	21,89%	21,96%
7	Total capital ratio (%)	21,61%	22,28%	22,34%	21,89%	21,96%
	Additional own funds requirements to address risks exposure amount)	other than the	risk of excessi	ve leverage (as	a percentage of	risk-weighted
EU 7a	Additional own funds requirements to address risks other than the risk of excessive leverage (%)	3,20%	3,20%	3,20%	3,20%	3,20%
EU 7b	of which: to be made up of CET1 capital (%)	1,80%	1,80%	1,80%	1,80%	1,80%
EU 7c	of which: to be made up of Tier 1 capital (%)	0,60%	0,60%	0,60%	0,60%	0,60%
EU 7d	Total SREP own funds requirements (%)	11,20%	11,20%	11,20%	11,20%	11,20%
	Combined buffer and overall capital requirement (as a	percentage of r	isk-weighted ex	(posure amount)	1	
8	Capital conservation buffer (%)	2,50%	2,50%	2,50%	2,50%	2,50%
EU 8a	Conservation buffer due to macro-prudential or systemic risk identified at the level of a Member State (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
9	Institution specific countercyclical capital buffer (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
EU 9a	Systemic risk buffer (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
10	Global Systemically Important Institution buffer (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
EU 10a	Other Systemically Important Institution buffer (%)	0,75%	0,75%	0,75%	0,75%	0,75%
11	Combined buffer requirement (%)	3,25%	3,25%	3,25%	3,25%	3,25%
EU 11a	Overall capital requirements (%)	14,45%	14,45%	14,45%	14,45%	14,45%
12	CET1 available after meeting the total SREP own funds requirements (%)	12,98%	13,64%	13,71%	13,14%	13,20%
	Leverage ratio ³					
13	Total exposure measure	19.023.290	16.210.723	16.109.613	15.939.663	16.143.441
14	Leverage ratio (%)	6,34%	7,62%	7,71%	7,26%	7,16%

¹ Figures and ratios presented are as per the final regulatory submissions and exclude unaudited profits.

² Figures and ratios presented are as per the final regulatory submissions.

³ On IFRS 9 transitional basis.

Template EU KM1 - Key metrics template (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е
		30-Jun-21 ¹	31-Mar-21 ¹	31-Dec-20 ²	30-Sep-20 ¹	30-Jun-20 ¹
	Additional own funds requirements to address the risk	of excessive le	everage (as a pe	ercentage of total	l exposure meas	sure)
EU 14a	Additional own funds requirements to address the risk of excessive leverage (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
EU 14b	of which: to be made up of CET1 capital (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
EU 14c	Total SREP leverage ratio requirements (%)	3,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
	Leverage ratio buffer and overall leverage ratio requirement (as a percentage of total exposure measure)					
EU 14d	Leverage ratio buffer requirement (%)	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
EU 14e	Overall leverage ratio requirement (%)	3,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
	Liquidity Coverage Ratio ⁴					
15	Total high-quality liquid assets (HQLA) (Weighted value - average) (€ million)	7.034	6.974	7.211	7.573	7.972
EU 16a	Cash outflows - Total weighted value (€ million)	1.854	1.866	1.900	1.950	1.984
EU 16b	Cash inflows - Total weighted value (€ million)	375	392	413	425	433
16	Total net cash outflows (adjusted value) (€ million)	1.478	1.475	1.487	1.524	1.551
17	Liquidity coverage ratio (%)	476%	473%	485%	497%	514%
	Net Stable Funding Ratio ⁵					
18	Total available stable funding (€ million)	14.936				
19	Total required stable funding (€ million)	7.979				
20	NSFR ratio (%)	187%				

The below table provides information on capital ratios and leverage ratio, on a transitional basis, including unaudited profits.

	а	b	С	d	е
	30-Jun-21	31-Mar-21	31-Dec-20	30-Sep-20	30-Jun-20
Available own funds (amounts €000)					
Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital	1.098.345	1.119.530	1.111.714	1.060.369	1.038.859
Tier 1 capital	1.228.011	1.249.197	1.241.380	1.190.035	1.168.525
Total capital	1.228.011	1.249.197	1.241.380	1.190.035	1.168.525
Risk-weighted exposure amounts					
Total risk exposure amount	5.581.753	5.541.109	5.556.267	5.285.622	5.259.799
Capital ratios (as a percentage of risk-weighted exp	osure amount)				
Common Equity Tier 1 ratio (%)	19,68%	20,20%	20,01%	20,06%	19,75%
Tier 1 ratio (%)	22,00%	22,54%	22,34%	22,51%	22,22%
Total capital ratio (%)	22,00%	22,54%	22,34%	22,51%	22,22%
Leverage ratio					
Total exposure measure	19.023.290	16.210.723	16.109.613	15.939.663	16.143.441
Leverage ratio (%)	6,46%	7,71%	7,71%	7,47%	7,24%

⁴ As per EBA Guidelines on Pillar III disclosures, each quarterly observation is the average of the previous 12 months preceding the end of

each quarter.

The Capital Requirements Regulation II (CRR II), the regulation which defines and implements the NSFR for the EU, was finalized in June 2019 and is effective from June 2021.

3. SCOPE OF APPLICATION

Template EU CC2 - Reconciliation of regulatory own funds to statement of financial position in the financial statements

The tables below provide the differences in the basis of consolidation for accounting and prudential purposes. The tables compare the Statement of Financial Position as presented in the Financial Statements with the Statement of Financial Position prepared for regulatory purposes. The accounting consolidation was based on International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) while the prudential consolidation was based on IFRSs and the requirements of the Basel III framework in relation to the capital requirements as adopted by the European Union.

(€000	,	Statement of financial position as in published financial statements	Statement of financial position under regulatory scope of consolidation	References
Asse				
1	Cash and balances with Central Banks	6.655.657	6.655.657	
2	Placements with other banks	387.180	371.263	
3	Loans and advances to customers	6.002.322	6.002.322	
4	Debt securities	4.752.056	4.751.586	
5	Equity and other securities and CIUs	80.290	27.907	а
6	Investment in subsidiary companies		39.689	b
7	Property, plant and equipment	181.744	174.395	
8	Stock of property	191.923	190.910	
9	Intangible assets	49.887	34.152	С
10	Tax receivable	242	242	
11	Deferred tax asset	8.815	8.815	d
12	Assets held for sale	7.497	7.497	
13	Other assets	160.919	91.913	
14	Total assets	18.478.532	18.356.350	
Liabi	lities			
15	Deposits by banks	130.580	130.580	
16	Deposits by Central banks	2.299.808	2.299.808	
17	Customer deposits and other customer accounts	14.476.759	14.476.759	
18	Amounts due to subsidiary companies		5.698	
19	Tax payable	19.687	19.067	
20	Deferred tax liability	16.599	16.419	
21	Other liabilities	256.894	147.972	
22	Loan capital	129.666	129.666	е
23	Total liabilities	17.329.993	17.225.969	
Equit	y			
24	Share capital	206.403	206.403	
25	Reserves	942.123	923.975	
26	Equity attributable to owners of the parent company	1.148.526	1.130.378	f
27	Non-controlling interests	13		
28	Total equity	1.148.539	1.130.378	
29	Total liabilities and equity	18.478.532	18.356.347	

10

⁶ Due to rounding, numbers presented may not cross reference with numbers in the statement of financial position as presented in the financial statements.

Template EU CC2 - Reconciliation of Regulatory Own Funds to Statement of Financial Position in the Financial Statements (continued)

As at (€000)	31 December 2020 6	Statement of financial position as in published financial statements	Statement of financial position under regulatory scope of consolidation	References
Asset	S			
1	Cash and balances with Central Banks	3.635.074	3.635.073	
2	Placements with other banks	416.869	404.366	
3	Loans and advances to customers	6.096.921	6.096.921	
4	Debt securities	5.023.933	5.023.460	
5	Equity and other securities and CIUs	67.373	19.098	а
6	Investment in subsidiary companies		39.689	b
7	Property, plant and equipment	183.364	175.962	
8	Stock of property	208.414	209.427	
9	Intangible assets	51.477	35.763	С
10	Tax receivable	677	260	
11	Deferred tax asset	9.608	9.608	d
12	Assets held for sale	8.719	8.719	
13	Other assets	154.446	87.255	
14	Total assets	15.856.875	15.745.601	
Liabili	ities			
15	Deposits by banks	142.760	142.760	
16	Customer deposits and other customer accounts	14.179.726	14.179.726	
17	Amounts due to subsidiary companies		5.136	
18	Tax payable	8.682	8.265	
19	Deferred tax liability	28.950	28.770	
20	Other liabilities	239.226	140.684	
21	Loan capital	129.666	129.666	е
22	Total liabilities	14.729.010	14.635.007	
Equity	1			
23	Share capital	206.403	206.403	
24	Reserves	921.450	904.191	
25	Equity attributable to owners of the parent company	1.127.853	1.110.594	f
26	Non-controlling interests	12		
27	Total equity	1.127.865	1.110.594	
28	Total liabilities and equity	15.856.875	15.745.601	

4. DISCLOSURE OF OWN FUNDS

4.1 Regulatory Capital

The Group's regulatory capital is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the CRR, as amended by CRR II where applicable, and is analysed as follows:

Common Equity Tier 1 capital

• Common Equity Tier 1 capital includes share capital, share premium, retained earnings including the profit/loss for the year, accumulated other comprehensive income (i.e. revaluation reserve of investments in debt securities, revaluation reserve of investments in equity and other securities and forced sale value of property revaluation reserve) and other reserves such as translation reserve and reduction of share capital reserve. As per Article 26 (i) of the CRR and EBA Guidelines on prudent valuations, a part of property revaluation reserve is not allowed to be included in CET 1 capital.

Deductions from CET 1 capital

- The carrying amount of goodwill and other intangible assets (except for software assets for which the provisions of Regulation (EU) 2020/873 apply).
- Pursuant to Article 34 of the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013, the prudent valuation requirements of Article 105
 of the CRR are applied to all assets and liabilities measured at fair value which relate to financial instruments
 and are deducted from CET 1 capital as well as the amount of any additional prudential value adjustments
 as per Article 3 of the CRR.
- As per Regulation (EU) 2019/630 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 17 April 2019 amending Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 as regards to minimum loss coverage for non-performing exposures (Pillar 1 treatment) and as per ECB Addendum to NPL Guidance (2018) and minimum provision coverages for legacy defaulters communicated via SREP assessment (Pillar 2 treatment), the prudential provisioning of nonperforming exposures is deducted from CET 1 capital.

IFRS 9 transitional arrangements

- As per Regulation (EU) 2017/2395 of the European Parliament and Council of 12 December 2017 issued amending Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 as regards transitional arrangements for mitigating the impact of the introduction of IFRS 9, a portion of the impact of expected credit losses provisions is added back to CET 1 capital allowing for a transitional period of five years until full impact on 2023. For the years 2021 and 2020 the portion added back is set at 50% and 70% respectively and will gradually reduce to 25% in 2022, which is the final year of the transitional period.
- In June 2020, Regulation (EU) 2020/873, as regards certain adjustments in response to the COVID-19 pandemic, came into force, which extends the IFRS 9 transitional arrangements by introducing further relief measures to CET 1. IFRS 9 transitional arrangements have been extended by 2 years (up until 31 December 2024). Post 1 January 2020 expected credit losses on Stages 1 and 2 exposures are added back in CET 1 in a phased-out period of five years. For the years 2021 and 2020 the portion added back is 100%, reducing to 75% for 2022, to 50% for 2023 and to 25% for 2024, which is the final year of the transitional period.
- Disclosures of IFRS 9 transitional arrangements impact on capital ratios are presented in Section 4.3.

4.1 Regulatory Capital (continued)

Not deducted from CET 1 capital

- With regards to the Group's significant investments in financial sector entities, including its investments in subsidiary companies which operate in the insurance sector, the Group applied the provisions of Article 48 of the CRR, where these items are less than 10% of CET 1 capital and therefore are risk weighted at 250%.
- Similarly, with regards to the Group's deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability and arise from temporary differences, the Group applied the provisions of Article 48 of the CRR, where these items are less than 10% of CET 1 capital and therefore is risk weighted at 250%.
- Additionally, as per the provisions of Article 48 of the CRR, the Group's significant investments in financial sector entities, including its investments in subsidiary companies which operate in the insurance sector and deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability and arise from temporary differences are subject to a combined threshold of 17,65% of CET 1 capital.

Additional Tier 1 capital

 Additional Tier 1 capital includes hybrid instruments, composed by Convertible Capital Securities 1 (CCS1) and Convertible Capital Securities 2 (CCS2).

The Group's Capital policy aims to ensure the viability of the Bank through the maintenance of an appropriate level of capital, to meet regulatory requirements and internal buffers set, safeguard the best interests of shareholders and support its business strategy.

Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process 2020 (SREP 2020)

As per ECB's communication received in November 2020, the ECB is not issuing a SREP decision for the 2020 SREP cycle, which was based on the SREP assessment conducted in 2020 with reference date 30 June 2020 and also having regard to any other relevant information received thereafter, and the requirements established by the 2019 SREP decision continue to apply, including in particular, the capital requirements. The 2019 SREP decision was based on the final decision received, on 4 December 2019, of ECB's intention to adopt a decision establishing prudential requirements pursuant to Article 16 of Council Regulation (EU) No 1024/2013. This communication follows the relevant ECB's announcement on May 2020, that the ECB will be adopting a pragmatic approach towards the SREP for the 2020 cycle.

Consequently, the Bank is required to maintain for 2021 on a consolidated basis, a phased-in Capital Adequacy Ratio of 14,45%, which includes:

- the minimum Pillar I own funds requirements of 8% in accordance with Article 92(1) of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 (of which up to 1,5% can be met with Additional Tier 1 Capital and up to 2% with Tier 2 Capital),
- an own funds Pillar II requirement of 3,2% required to be held in excess of the minimum own fund requirement (effective from March 2020, P2R to be met with 56,25% of CET1, 18,75% of AT1 and 25% of T2), and
- a phased-in combined buffer requirement which for 2021 includes the fully loaded capital conservation buffer of 2,5% which has to be made up with CET 1 capital and the O-SII buffer of 0,75%, with application starting from 1 January 2019 which is phased-in over a period of five years. As per CBC circular dated 7 May 2020, the fully loaded O-SII buffer for the Bank remains at 1,5% but with the phasing-in being deferred by 12 months, from the original 4 years, as a relief measure aiming to further assist corporations and households to deal with the economic consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic.

4.1 Regulatory Capital (continued)

Additionally, applicable for the Bank, the combined buffer requirement includes:

- an institution-specific Countercyclical capital buffer (CCyB) calculated as a weighted average of the countercyclical buffer rates that apply in the countries where an institution's credit exposures are located. The CCyB rate for Cyprus, where most of the Bank's exposures are located, was set at 0% by CBC for 2021. For the remaining exposures, the CCyB rate for the six-month period of 2021 was also 0%.
- Systemic Risk Buffer (the reciprocation of the Estonian Systemic Risk buffer for exposures located in Estonia of credit institutions authorised in Cyprus adopted by CBC, has been terminated as of 30 May 2019).

Based on the 2020 SREP communication the Pillar II requirement which is applicable for 2021 has remained the same as in 2020 at 3,2%, as the 2019 SREP decision remains in force. Furthermore, the Bank shall continue to refrain from making distributions to its shareholders, as the 2019 SREP decision continues to apply.

Considering the above, the Group's minimum Capital Adequacy Ratio, CET 1 and Tier 1 ratios for 2021 are set at 14,45%, 9,55% and 11,65% respectively, excluding Pillar II capital guidance.

In addition to the above, the ECB has provided on a consolidated basis, a Pillar II capital guidance to be made up entirely of CET 1 capital, which has remained the same as in 2020, as the 2019 SREP decision remains in force.

The tables below disclose the components of regulatory capital as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 on both a transitional and fully loaded basis. The disclosures have been prepared using the format set out in Annex VI of the "Commission Implementing Regulation (EU) No 1423/2013", which lays down implementing technical standards with regards to disclosure of own funds requirements for institutions, in accordance with CRR as amended by CRR II.

30 June (€000)	e 2021	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital: ins	struments	and reserves		
1	Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts		759.831		759.831
2	Retained earnings	f	31.498		31.498
3	Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves)	(note 1)	296.892		296.892
EU-3a	Funds for general banking risk				
	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 484 (3) CRR and the				
4	related share premium accounts subject to phase out from CET1				
5	Minority interests (amount allowed in consolidated CET 1)				
EU-5a	Independently reviewed interim profits net of any foreseeable charge or dividend				
	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital before regulatory				
6	adjustments		1.088.221		1.088.221
	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital: re	egulatory a	djustments		
7	Additional value adjustments (negative amount)		(264)		(264)
8	Intangible assets (net of related tax liability) (negative amount)	c (note 2)	(35.795)		(35.795)
10	Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability where the conditions in Article 38 (3) CRR are met) (negative amount)				
11	Fair value reserves related to gains or losses on cash flow hedges of financial instruments that are not valued at fair value				
12	Negative amounts resulting from the calculation of expected loss amounts				
13	Any increase in equity that results from securitised assets (negative amount)				
14	Gains or losses on liabilities valued at fair value resulting from changes in own credit standing				
15	Defined-benefit pension fund assets (negative amount)				
16	Direct and indirect holdings by an institution of own CET 1 instruments (negative amount)				
17	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the CET 1 instruments of financial sector entities where those entities have reciprocal cross holdings with the institution designed to inflate artificially the own funds of the institution (negative amount)		1		ł
18	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the CET1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount above 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				1
19	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the CET1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution has a significant investment in those entities (amount above 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
EU-20a	Exposure amount of the following items which qualify for a RW of 1250%, where the institution opts for the deduction alternative				
EU-20b	of which: qualifying holdings outside the financial sector (negative amount)				
EU-20c	of which: securitisation positions (negative amount)				
EU-20d					

⁷ Source based on reference numbers/letters of the statement of financial position under the regulatory scope of consolidation presented on Section 3.

30 June (€000)		Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
21	Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability where the conditions in Article				
	38 (3) CRR are met) (negative amount)				
22	Amount exceeding the 17,65% threshold (negative amount)				
	of which: direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of				
23	the CET1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution				
	has a significant investment in those entities				
25	of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences				
EU-25a	Losses for the current financial year (negative amount)				
	Foreseeable tax charges relating to CET1 items except where the				
EU-25b	institution suitably adjusts the amount of CET1 items insofar as such				
202	tax charges reduce the amount up to which those items may be used				
	to cover risks or losses (negative amount)				
27	Qualifying AT1 deductions that exceed the AT1 items of the institution				
07	(negative amount)				(04.000)
27a	Other regulatory adjustments	note 3	24.162	(45.362)	(21.200)
28	Total regulatory adjustments to Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)		(11.897)	(45.362)	(57.259)
29	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital		1.076.324	(45.362)	1.030.962
	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital:	instrument			
30	Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts	е	129.666		129.666
31	of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting standards				
32	of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting	е			
02	standards		129.666		129.666
33	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 484 (4) CRR and the				
	related share premium accounts subject to phase out from AT1				
35	of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out				
EU-33b	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494b (1) CRR subject				
	to phase out from AT1				
24	Qualifying Tier 1 capital included in consolidated AT1 capital				
34	(including minority interests not included in row 5) issued by				
25	subsidiaries and held by third parties				
35	of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out				400.000
36	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital before regulatory adjustments		129.666		129.666
	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital: regula	atory adjus	tments		
37	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by an institution of own AT1				
	instruments (negative amount) Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the AT1 instruments of				
	financial sector entities where those entities have reciprocal cross				
38	holdings with the institution designed to inflate artificially the own				
	funds of the institution (negative amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the AT1 instruments of				
	financial sector entities where the institution does not have a				
39	significant investment in those entities (amount above 10% threshold				
	and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the AT1				
40	instruments of financial sector entities where the institution has a				
40	significant investment in those entities (net of eligible short positions)				
	(negative amount)			-	-
42	Qualifying T2 deductions that exceed the T2 items of the institution				
42	(negative amount)				
42a	Other regulatory adjustments to AT1 capital				
43	Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital				
44	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital		129.666		129.666

30 Jun (€000)	e 2021	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
	Tier 2 (T2) capital: instru	ments			
46	Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts			-	
	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 484(5) CRR and the				
47	related share premium accounts subject to phase out from T2 as				
	described in Article 486(4) CRR				
EU-47a	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494a (2) CRR subject				
LO 47 a	to phase out from T2				
EU-47b	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494b (2) CRR subject				
LO 470	to phase out from T2				
	Qualifying own funds instruments included in consolidated T2 capital				
48	(including minority interests and AT1 instruments not included in rows				
	5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties			-	
49	of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out				
50	Credit risk adjustments				
51	Tier 2 (T2) capital before regulatory adjustments				
	Tier 2 (T2) capital: regulatory a	adjustment	S		
52	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by an institution of own T2				
32	instruments and subordinated loans (negative amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the T2 instruments and				
53	subordinated loans of financial sector entities where those entities				
	have reciprocal cross holdings with the institution designed to inflate				
	artificially the own funds of the institution (negative amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the T2 instruments and				
5 4	subordinated loans of financial sector entities where the institution				
54	does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount above				
	10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the T2				
55	instruments and subordinated loans of financial sector entities where				
	the institution has a significant investment in those entities (net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
	Qualifying eligible liabilities deductions that exceed the eligible				
EU-56a	liabilities items of the institution (negative amount)				
EU-56b	Other regulatory adjustments to T2 capital				
57	Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 (T2) capital				
58	Tier 2 (T2) capital				
59	Total capital (TC = T1 + T2)		1.205.990	(45.362)	1.160.628
60	Total risk exposure amount		5.581.753	(65.059)	5.516.694
- 00	i otal flor oxposulo allivalit		0.001.700	(00.003)	0.010.007

30 June (€000)	e 2021	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
	Capital ratios and bu	ffers			
61	Common Equity Tier 1 capital		19,28%	(0,59%)	18,69%
62	Tier 1 capital		21,61%	(0,57%)	21,04%
63	Total capital		21,61%	(0,57%)	21,04%
64	Institution CET 1 overall capital requirement		9,55%	0,75%	10,30%
65	of which: capital conservation buffer requirement		2,50%	0,00%	2,50%
66	of which: countercyclical capital buffer requirement		0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
67	of which: systemic risk buffer requirement		0.00%	0,00%	0,00%
EU-67a	of which: Global Systemically Important Institution (G-SII) or Other Systemically Important Institution (O-SII) buffer requirement		0,75%	0,75%	1,50%
EU-67b	of which: additional own funds requirements to address the risks other than the risk of excessive leverage		0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
68	Common Equity Tier 1 capital (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) available after meeting the minimum capital requirements		12,98%	(0,59%)	12,39%
	Amounts below the thresholds for deducti	on (before r	isk weighting)		
72	Direct and indirect holdings of own funds and eligible liabilities of financial sector entities where the institution does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount below 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions)	,			
73	Direct and indirect holdings by the institution of the CET 1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution has a significant investment in those entities (amount below 17.65% thresholds and net of eligible short positions)	a + b (note 4)	38.827		38.827
75	Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount below 17,65% threshold, net of related tax liability where the	(11010-4)			
	conditions in Article 38 (3) CRR are met)	d	8.815		8.815
	Applicable caps on the inclusion of	provisions i	n Tier 2	T	
76	Credit risk adjustments included in T2 in respect of exposures subject to standardised approach (prior to the application of the cap)				
77	Cap on inclusion of credit risk adjustments in T2 under standardised approach		60.536	(813)	59.723
78	Credit risk adjustments included in T2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior to the application of the cap)				
79	Cap for inclusion of credit risk adjustments in T2 under internal ratings-based approach				
	Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only a	applicable b	etween 1 Jan 20	14 and 1 Jan 2	022)
80	Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements				
81	Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)				
82	Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements				
83	Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)				
84	Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements				
85	Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)				

31 Dec	ember 2020	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital: ir	nstruments	and reserves		
1	Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts		759.831		759.831
2	Retained earnings	f	31.498	-	31.498
3	Accumulated other comprehensive income (and other reserves)	(note 1)	298.741		298.741
EU-3a	Funds for general banking risk				-
4	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 484 (3) CRR and the				-
4	related share premium accounts subject to phase out from CET1				
5	Minority interests (amount allowed in consolidated CET 1)				
EU-5a	Independently reviewed interim profits net of any foreseeable charge or dividend				
6	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital before regulatory adjustments		1.090.070	-	1.090.070
	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital:	regulatory a	djustments		
7	Additional value adjustments (negative amount)		(294)		(294)
8	Intangible assets (net of related tax liability) (negative amount)	c (note 2)	(36.084)		(36.084)
10	Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences (net of related tax liability where the conditions in Article 38 (3) CRR are met) (negative amount)				
11	Fair value reserves related to gains or losses on cash flow hedges of financial instruments that are not valued at fair value			-	-
12	Negative amounts resulting from the calculation of expected loss amounts			-	1
13	Any increase in equity that results from securitised assets (negative amount)				
14	Gains or losses on liabilities valued at fair value resulting from changes in own credit standing				
15	Defined-benefit pension fund assets (negative amount)				
16	Direct and indirect holdings by an institution of own CET 1 instruments (negative amount)				
17	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the CET 1 instruments of financial sector entities where those entities have reciprocal cross holdings with the institution designed to inflate artificially the own funds of the institution (negative amount)			-	
18	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the CET1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount above 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)			1	
19	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the CET1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution has a significant investment in those entities (amount above 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
EU-20a	Exposure amount of the following items which qualify for a RW of 1250%, where the institution opts for the deduction alternative				
EU-20b	of which: qualifying holdings outside the financial sector (negative amount)			-	
EU-20c	of which: securitisation positions (negative amount)			-	
EU-20d	of which: free deliveries (negative amount)			-	
21	Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related tax liability where the conditions				
22	in Article 38 (3) CRR are met) (negative amount)				
22	Amount exceeding the 17,65% threshold (negative amount) of which: direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the CET1 instruments of financial sector entities where the				
23	institution has a significant investment in those entities				
25	of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences				
EU-25a	Losses for the current financial year (negative amount)				

31 Dec (€000)	ember 2020	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
EU-25b	Foreseeable tax charges relating to CET1 items except where the institution suitably adjusts the amount of CET1 items insofar as such tax charges reduce the amount up to which those items may be used				
	to cover risks or losses (negative amount)				
27	Qualifying AT1 deductions that exceed the AT1 items of the institution				
27a	(negative amount) Other regulatory adjustments	note 3	58.022	(59.422)	(1.400)
28	Total regulatory adjustments to Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1)	Hote 3	21.644	(59.422)	(37.778)
29	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET 1) capital		1.111.714	(59.422)	1.052.292
20	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital	: instrumen		(33.422)	1.002.232
30	Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts	е	129.666		129.666
	of which: classified as equity under applicable accounting				
31	standards				
32	of which: classified as liabilities under applicable accounting	е			
32	standards		129.666		129.666
33	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 484 (4) CRR and the related share premium accounts subject to phase out from AT1				
EU-33a	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494a (1) CRR subject to phase out from AT1				
EU-33b	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494b (1) CRR subject to phase out from AT1				
34	Qualifying Tier 1 capital included in consolidated AT1 capital (including minority interests not included in row 5) issued by				
	subsidiaries and held by third parties				
35	of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out				
36	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital before regulatory adjustments		129.666		129.666
37	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by an institution of own AT1				
	instruments (negative amount)				
38	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the AT1 instruments of financial sector entities where those entities have reciprocal cross holdings with the institution designed to inflate artificially the own funds of the institution (negative amount)				
39	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the AT1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount above 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
•	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital: regu	latory adjus	stments		
40	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the AT1 instruments of financial sector entities where the institution has a significant investment in those entities (net of eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
42	Qualifying T2 deductions that exceed the T2 items of the institution (negative amount)				
42a	Other regulatory adjustments to AT1 capital				
43	Total regulatory adjustments to Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital				
44	Additional Tier 1 (AT1) capital		129.666		129.666
45	Tier 1 capital (T1 = CET1 + AT1)		1.241.380	(59.422)	1.181.958

31 Dec	ember 2020	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional	Fully loaded basis
(€000)	Tier 2 (T2) capital: instr	uments	Dasis	impact	Dasis
46	Capital instruments and the related share premium accounts				
70	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 484(5) CRR and the				
47	related share premium accounts subject to phase out from T2 as				
''	described in Article 486(4) CRR				
E11.47	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494a (2) CRR subject				
EU-47a	to phase out from T2				
EU-47b	Amount of qualifying items referred to in Article 494b (2) CRR subject				
EU-470	to phase out from T2				
	Qualifying own funds instruments included in consolidated T2 capital				
48	(including minority interests and AT1 instruments not included in rows				
	5 or 34) issued by subsidiaries and held by third parties				
49	of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out				
50	Credit risk adjustments				
51	Tier 2 (T2) capital before regulatory adjustments				
	Tier 2 (T2) capital: regulatory	adjustmen	ts		
52	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by an institution of own T2				
02	instruments and subordinated loans (negative amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the T2 instruments and				
53	subordinated loans of financial sector entities where those entities				
	have reciprocal cross holdings with the institution designed to inflate				
	artificially the own funds of the institution (negative amount)			-	
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings of the T2 instruments and				
	subordinated loans of financial sector entities where the institution				
54	does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount				
	above 10% threshold and net of eligible short positions) (negative				
	amount)				
	Direct, indirect and synthetic holdings by the institution of the T2				
55	instruments and subordinated loans of financial sector entities where				
	the institution has a significant investment in those entities (net of				
	eligible short positions) (negative amount)				
EU-56a	Qualifying eligible liabilities deductions that exceed the eligible				
	liabilities items of the institution (negative amount)				
EU-56b	Other regulatory adjustments to T2 capital		 	 	
57 58	Total regulatory adjustments to Tier 2 (T2) capital				<u></u>
	Tier 2 (T2) capital		4 044 000	/F0 400\	4 404 050
59	Total capital (TC = T1 + T2)		1.241.380	(59.422)	1.181.958
60	Total risk exposure amount		5.556.267	(70.839)	5.485.428

31 Dec	ember 2020	Source ⁷	Transitional basis	Transitional impact	Fully loaded basis
	Capital ratios and bu	ffers			
61	Common Equity Tier 1 capital		20,01%	(0,83%)	19,18%
62	Tier 1 capital		22,34%	(0,79%)	21,55%
63	Total capital		22,34%	(0,79%)	21,55%
64	Institution CET 1 overall capital requirement		9,55%	0,75%	10,30%
65	of which: capital conservation buffer requirement		2,50%	0,00%	2,50%
66	of which: countercyclical capital buffer requirement		0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
67	of which: systemic risk buffer requirement		0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
01	of which: Global Systemically Important Institution (G-SII) or		0,0078	0,0078	0,0076
EU-67a	Other Systemically Important Institution (O-SII) buffer requirement		0,75%	0,75%	1,50%
EU-67b	of which: additional own funds requirements to address the risks other than the risk of excessive leverage		0,00%	0,00%	0,00%
68	Common Equity Tier 1 capital (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) available after meeting the minimum capital requirements		13,71%	(0,83%)	12,88%
	Amounts below the thresholds for deducti	on (before r	isk weighting)		
72	Direct and indirect holdings of own funds and eligible liabilities of financial sector entities where the institution does not have a significant investment in those entities (amount below 10% threshold				
	and net of eligible short positions) Direct and indirect holdings by the institution of the CET 1				
73	instruments of financial sector entities where the institution has a significant investment in those entities (amount below 17.65% thresholds and net of eligible short positions)	a + b (note 4)	31.241		31.241
75	Deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences (amount below 17,65% threshold, net of related tax liability where the conditions in Article 38 (3) CRR are met)	d	9.608		9.608
	Applicable caps on the inclusion of				9.000
	Credit risk adjustments included in T2 in respect of exposures	provisions			
76	subject to standardised approach (prior to the application of the cap)				
77	Cap on inclusion of credit risk adjustments in T2 under standardised approach		60.264	(855)	59.379
78	Credit risk adjustments included in T2 in respect of exposures subject to internal ratings-based approach (prior to the application of the cap)				
79	Cap for inclusion of credit risk adjustments in T2 under internal ratings-based approach				
	Capital instruments subject to phase-out arrangements (only a	applicable b	etween 1 Jan 20)14 and 1 Jan 2	022)
80	Current cap on CET1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements				
81	Amount excluded from CET1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)				
82	Current cap on AT1 instruments subject to phase out arrangements				
83	Amount excluded from AT1 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)				
84	Current cap on T2 instruments subject to phase out arrangements				
85	Amount excluded from T2 due to cap (excess over cap after redemptions and maturities)				

Notes:

- 1. As at 30 June 2021, as per Article 26 (i) of the CRR and EBA Guidelines on prudent valuations a part of property revaluation reserve amounting to €20.136 thousand is not allowed to be included in CET 1 capital (31 December 2020: €20.524 thousand). Additionally, retained earnings for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 exclude unaudited profits amounting to €22.021 thousand.
- 2. As at 30 June 2021, software assets amounting to €12.775 thousand (31 December 2020: €14.097 thousand) were not deducted from CET 1 capital as per the provisions of Regulation (EU) 2020/873. Additionally, Goodwill includes the excess of the cost of the acquisition over the Group's interest in the net fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquired entities at the date of acquisition of Pancyprian Insurance Ltd (PIL) as well as Present value of acquired in force business (PVIF) owned by PIL amounting to €14.418 thousand (31 December 2020: €14.418 thousand).
- 3. Other regulatory adjustments include IFRS 9 transitional arrangements added back of €45.362 thousand (31 December 2020: €59.422 thousand), capital reduction for additional prudential value adjustments as per Article 3 of the CRR of €1.400 thousand (31 December 2020: €1.400 thousand) and capital deduction for the prudential provisioning of non-performing exposures of €19.800 thousand, based on Pillar 1 and Pillar 2 treatment, (31 December 2020: NIL).
- 4. The corresponding reference in the statement of financial position includes the Group's significant investments in financial sector entities, including its investments in subsidiary companies which operate in the insurance sector (amount below 10% threshold from CET 1 capital).

Composition of regulatory own funds - commentary

The decrease of 73 basis in CET 1 ratio⁸ (transitional basis) compared to 31 December 2020, was the result of the following:

- i) decrease in CET1 capital, due to:
 - the change in IFRS 9 transitional arrangements added back to CET 1, reduced from 85% for 2019 and 70% for 2020 to 50% for 2021 and the COVID-19 relief measures as per Regulation (EU) 2020/873 by which post 1 January 2020 expected credit losses on Stages 1 and 2 exposures are added back in CET 1 in a phased-out period of 5 years (100% for 2020 and 2021) (net effect of 25 basis points decrease),
 - the decrease in other comprehensive income (effect of 3 basis points decrease), mainly due to the decrease in revaluation reserve from bonds and the decrease in intangible assets (effect of 1 basis point increase).
 - the prudential provision impact of non-performing exposures as per Regulation (EU) 2019/630, amending Regulation (EU) No 575/2013 as regards to minimum loss coverage for non-performing exposures (Pillar 1 treatment) and as per ECB Addendum to NPL Guidance (2018) and minimum provision coverages for legacy defaulters communicated via SREP assessment (Pillar 2 treatment) is deducted from CET 1 capital (effect of 35 basis points decrease),
- ii) overall increase in RWAs, mainly due to the increase in investments in debt securities, as the Bank continues the investment activity on the treasury portfolio, and new lending, offset by the decrease in placements with other banks and decrease in net funded exposures due to repayments (effect of 10 basis points decrease).

⁸ As per the final regulatory submissions excluding unaudited profits for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021

4.3 Comparison of institutions' own funds and capital and leverage ratios with and without the application of transitional arrangements for IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs, and with and without the application of the temporary treatment in accordance with Article 468 CRR

Template IFRS 9 /Article 468 - Fully Loaded9

		30-Jun-21 ¹⁰	31-Mar-21 ¹⁰	31-Dec-20 ¹¹	30-Sep-20 ¹⁰	30-Jun-20 ¹⁰
	Available capital (amounts €000)					
1	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital	1.076.324	1.104.915	1.111.714	1.027.542	1.025.617
2	Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	1.030.962	1.051.621	1.052.292	979.633	978.324
3	Tier 1 capital	1.205.990	1.234.582	1.241.380	1.157.208	1.155.283
4	Tier 1 capital as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	1.160.629	1.181.288	1.181.959	1.109.300	1.107.991
5	Total capital	1.205.990	1.234.582	1.241.380	1.157.208	1.155.283
6	Total capital as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	1.160.629	1.181.288	1.181.959	1.109.300	1.107.991
	Risk-weighted assets (amounts €000)					
7	Total risk-weighted assets	5.581.753	5.541.109	5.556.267	5.285.622	5.259.799
8	Total risk-weighted assets as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	5.516.694	5.488.460	5.485.428	5.234.934	5.210.060
	Capital ratios					
9	Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk exposure amount)	19,28%	19,94%	20,01%	19,44%	19,50%
10	Common Equity Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	18,69%	19,16%	19,18%	18,71%	18,78%
11	Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk exposure amount)	21,61%	22,28%	22,34%	21,89%	21,96%
12	Tier 1 (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	21,04%	21,52%	21,55%	21,19%	21,27%
13	Total capital (as a percentage of risk exposure amount)	21,61%	22,28%	22,34%	21,89%	21,96%
14	Total capital (as a percentage of risk exposure amount) as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	21,04%	21,52%	21,55%	21,19%	21,27%
	Leverage ratio					
15	Leverage ratio total exposure measure	19.023.290	16.210.723	16.109.613	15.939.663	16.143.441
	Leverage ratio total exposure measure as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	19.004.076	16.179.198	16.050.786	15.919.957	16.123.956
16	Leverage ratio	6,34%	7,62%	7,71%	7,26%	7,16%
17	Leverage ratio as if IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs transitional arrangements had not been applied	6,11%	7,30%	7,36%	6,97%	6,87%

⁹ The Group has not adopted the temporary treatment of unrealised gains and losses measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, therefore in the above template the relevant rows have not been included.

Figures and ratios presented are as per the final regulatory submissions and exclude unaudited profits.
 Figures and ratios presented are as per the final regulatory submissions.

4.4 Disclosure of countercyclical capital buffers

As set out in Article 130(1) of Directive 2013/36/EU Member States are obliged to require institutions to maintain an institution-specific countercyclical capital buffer.

With a view to ensuring transparency and comparability across institutions, the CRR requires institutions to disclose the key elements of the calculation of their countercyclical capital buffer, comprising the geographical distribution of their relevant credit exposures and the final amount of their institution-specific countercyclical capital buffer.

As set out in Article 130(1) of Directive 2013/36/EU, an institution-specific countercyclical buffer is calculated as the product of its total risk exposure amount in accordance with Article 92(3) of the CRR and the institution-specific countercyclical buffer rate.

As set out in Article 140(1) of Directive 2013/36/EU, an institution-specific countercyclical capital buffer rate consists of the weighted average of the countercyclical buffer rates that apply in the countries where the relevant credit exposures of the institution are located. The distribution by country of relevant credit exposures is provided in the tables below for June 2021 and December 2020 respectively, in accordance with the provisions laid down in Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1152/2014:

4.4.1 Template EU CCyB1 - Geographical distribution of credit exposures relevant for the calculation of the countercyclical buffer

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m
30 (€0	June 2021 00)	General expos			nt credit - Market risk	Securitisation		Own fund requirements		·			Own fund	Counter
		Exposure value under the standardised approach	Exposure value under the IRB approach	Sum of long and short positions of trading book exposures for SA	Value of trading book exposures for internal models	exposures Exposure value for non- trading book	Total exposure value	Relevant credit risk exposures - Credit risk	Relevant credit exposures – Market risk	Relevant credit exposures – Securitisation positions in the non- trading book	Total	weighted exposure amounts	requirements weights (%)	cyclical buffer rate (%)
01	Breakdown by country:									-				
010	1 Cyprus	5.687.820		450	-	408.028	6.096.298	326.142	36	9.612	335.791	3.601.139	95%	0%
010	2 Other	496.845		1	-	167.130	663.975	15.995		1.337	17.332	1.241.728	5%	0%
02	Total	6.184.665		450	-	575.158	6.760.273	342.137	36	10.949	353.123	4.842.867	100%	

4.4 Disclosure of countercyclical capital buffers (continued)

4.4.1 Template EU CCyB1 - Geographical distribution of credit exposures relevant for the calculation of the countercyclical buffer (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m			
31 De (€000)	cember 2020)	General expos			nt credit - Market risk	Securitisation	isation		Own fund requirements			Own fund requirements			Risk-	Own fund	Counter
		Exposure value under the standardised approach	Exposure value under the IRB approach	Sum of long and short positions of trading book exposures for SA	Value of trading book exposures for internal models	exposures Exposure value for non- trading book	Total exposure value	Relevant credit risk exposures - Credit risk		Relevant credit exposures – Securitisation positions in the non- trading book	Total	weighted exposure amounts	requirements weights (%)	cyclical buffer rate (%)			
010	Breakdown by country:																
0101	Cyprus	5.563.066		450		242.025		317.431	36	7.304	324.771	3.632.410	92%	0%			
0102	Other	635.598				171.810		24.977		1.374	26.351	1.188.741	8%	0%			
020	Total	6.198.664		450		413.835	6.612.949	342.408	36	8.678	351.122	4.821.151	100%				

In accordance with Article 2(5)(b) of Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) No 1152/2014, foreign general credit risk exposures, whose aggregate does not exceed 2% of the aggregate of the general credit, trading book and securitisation exposures of that institution, may be allocated to the institutions' home member state. The Bank has applied this discretion and since the highest foreign exposure is less than the 2% threshold (except France, Netherlands, UK and Marshall Islands in 2020), all foreign exposures, excluding the ones aforementioned, have been allocated to Cyprus.

4.4.2 Template EU CCyB2 - Amount of institution-specific countercyclical capital buffer

The table below summarizes the institution-specific countercyclical buffer rate calculation for June 2021 and December 2020 respectively:

€00	0)	30 June 2021	31 December 2020
1	otal Risk Exposure Amount	5.581.753	5.556.267
2	nstitution specific countercyclical buffer rate	0,0%	0,0%
3	nstitution specific countercyclical buffer requirement		

5. CREDIT RISK MANAGEMENT

5.1 Disclosure of overview of risk-weighted exposure amounts

The Group follows the Standardised Approach for the calculation of the Pillar I capital requirement for credit risk and market risk and the Basic Indicator Approach for operational risk. Pillar II requirements are calculated through the ICAAP exercise. A comparison of Pillar I capital requirement (defined on Pillar I total capital at 8%) between 2021 and 2020 is provided in the table below.

Template EU OV1 – Overview of total risk exposure amounts

(€000)		Total risk expo	osure amounts EA) ¹²	Total own funds requirements
		30 June 2021	31 December 2020	30 June 2021
1	Credit risk (excluding CCR)	4.577.742	4.608.597	366.219
2	Of which the standardised approach	4.577.742	4.608.597	366.219
3	Of which the Foundation IRB (F-IRB) approach			
4	Of which slotting approach			
EU 4a	Of which equities under the simple riskweighted approach			
5	Of which the Advanced IRB (A-IRB) approach			
6	Counterparty credit risk - CCR	14.455	3.414	1.156
7	Of which the standardised approach			
8	Of which internal model method (IMM)			
EU 8a	Of which exposures to a CCP			
EU 8b	Of which credit valuation adjustment - CVA	5.299	1.466	424
9	Of which other CCR	9.155	1.949	732
15	Settlement risk			
16	Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book (after the cap)	136.868	108.482	10.949
17	Of which SEC-IRBA approach			
18	Of which SEC-ERBA (including IAA)	92.388	58.987	7.391
19	Of which SEC-SA approach	44.480	49.495	3.558
EU 19a	Of which 1250% / deduction			
20	Position, foreign exchange and commodities risks (Market risk)	663	728	53
21	Of which the standardised approach	663	728	53
22	Of which IMA			
EU 22a	Large exposures			
23	Operational risk	732.923	732.923	58.634
EU 23a	Of which basic indicator approach	732.923	732.923	58.634
EU 23b	Of which standardised approach			
EU 23c	Of which advanced measurement approach			
24	Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (subject to 250% risk weight)	119.102	102.123	9.528
29	Total	5.581.753	5.556.267	446.540

The increase in total RWAs is mainly due to the increase in investments in debt securities, as the Bank continues the investment activity on the treasury portfolio, and new lending, offset by the decrease in placements with other banks and decrease in net funded exposures due to repayments.

_

¹² Figures reported include loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

5.2 Disclosure of the use of credit risk mitigation techniques

The tables below provide a breakdown of the carrying amount of unsecured and secured exposures (net of allowances/impairments), the carrying amount of exposures (net of allowances/impairments) covered by collateral, financial guarantees and credit derivatives used as credit risk mitigants for loans and advances, debt securities and population which are non-performing and in default, as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CR3 - CRM techniques overview - Disclosure of the use of credit risk mitigation techniques

		Unsecured	Secured carrying	gamount		
30 Ju (€000	ine 2021))	carrying amount		Of which secured by collateral	Of which secure guarantees	d by financial
						Of which secured by credit derivatives
		а	b	С	d	е
1	Loans and advances ¹³	8.410.565	5.147.426	5.053.938	93.488	
2	Debt securities	4.752.980				
3	Total	13.163.545	5.147.426	5.053.938	93.488	-
4	Of which non-performing exposures	688.194	784.771	775.983	8.788	
EU-5	Of which defaulted	688.194	784.771			

		Unsecured	Secured carrying	j amount		
31 De	ecember 2020	carrying amount		Of which secured by collateral	Of which secure guarantees	d by financial
(6000	<i>''</i>					Of which secured by credit derivatives
		а	b	С	d	е
1	Loans and advances ¹³	5.559.628	5.140.827	5.047.360	93.467	
2	Debt securities	5.025.278	-	1		
3	Total	10.584.906	5.140.827	5.047.360	93.467	-
4	Of which non-performing exposures	701.898	801.317	792.709	8.608	1
EU-5	Of which defaulted	701.898	801.317			

The increase observed between the current and last year figures in the category "Total Loans" was driven by an increase in Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits due to the participation of the Bank in the June 2021 ECB TLTRO operation. The Bank proceeded with a TLTRO transaction with the ECB (repurchase agreement) for an amount of €2,3 billion where it pledges bonds to received cash. The cash proceeds where placed in the ECB Target 2 account.

¹³ Figures reported include cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits and exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

¹⁴ The figures reported for 31 December 2020 have been restated, in order to be comparable with current period figures, to be in with the latest EBA Guidelines on Pillar III disclosures.

5.3 Disclosure of the use of standardised approach

The tables below illustrate the effect of all CRM techniques applied in accordance with Part Three, Title II, Chapter 4 of the CRR as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CR4 – Standardised approach – Credit risk exposure and CRM effects

		а	b	С	d	е	f
30	June 2021 - (€000)	Exposures be	fore CCF and	Exposures pos	t CCF and post	RWAs and R	WAs density
		before	CRM	CF	RM		
Ex	posure classes ¹⁵	On-balance-	Off-balance-	On-balance-	Off-balance-	RWAs	RWA Density
		sheet exposures	sheet exposures	sheet exposures	sheet exposures		
1	Central governments or central banks	8.656.903	6	9.991.516	1.928		0%
2	Regional government or local authorities	5.947	9.430	2.281		456	20%
3	Public sector entities		40	-	5	5	100%
4	Multilateral development banks	128.761		128.761			0%
5	International organisations	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
6	Institutions	1.525.686	3.038	1.530.222	2.590	438.043	29%
7	Corporates	1.513.321	597.500	1.359.166	134.718	1.343.698	90%
8	Retail	2.087.383	572.001	1.045.565	67.217	790.364	71%
9	Secured by mortgages on immovable property	1.599.393	47.047	1.599.393	28.058	687.086	42%
10	Exposures in default	792.051	20.616	454.341	4.459	512.713	112%
11	Exposures associated with particularly high risk	204.637	62.236	184.909	27.948	319.285	150%
12	Covered bonds	642.258		642.258		81.019	13%
13	Institutions and corporates with a short-term credit						
	assessment	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
14	Collective investment undertakings	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
15	Equity	25.269	-	25.269		63.173	250%
16	Other items	611.351	-	611.351		461.002	75%
17	Total	17.792.960	1.311.914	17.575.031	266.925	4.696.844	26%

¹⁵ Figures reported include loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

5.3 Disclosure of the use of standardised approach (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f
31 [December 2020 - (€000)	Exposures before			st CCF and post	RWAs and R	WAs density
Exp	osure classes ¹⁵	On-balance-sheet	Off-balance-	On-balance-	Off-balance-sheet	RWAs	RWA Density
		exposures	sheet exposures	sheet exposures	exposures		
1	Central governments or central banks	6.037.791	6	7.447.480	3.098		0%
2	Regional government or local authorities	4.787	10.340	2.287	11	460	20%
3	Public sector entities	2	44				100%
4	Multilateral development banks	177.403		177.403			0%
5	International organisations	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
6	Institutions	1.544.357	2.696	1.548.597	2.624	430.204	28%
7	Corporates	1.538.784	542.212	1.383.063	77.748	1.307.829	90%
8	Retail	2.215.318	590.903	1.098.316	64.105	825.596	71%
9	Secured by mortgages on immovable property	1.529.192	46.443	1.529.192	29.828	635.769	41%
10	Exposures in default	809.890	34.911	484.715	10.194	537.228	109%
11	Exposures associated with particularly high risk	232.706	79.450	208.267	35.219	365.229	150%
12	Covered bonds	643.523		643.523		81.112	13%
13	Institutions and corporates with a short-term credit	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
	assessment						
14	Collective investment undertakings	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A
15	Equity	25.270		25.270		63.175	250%
16	Other items	609.170		609.170		464.118	76%
17	Total	15.368.193	1.307.005	15.157.283	222.827	4.710.720	31%

The on-balance sheet amount of "Central government or Central banks" exposure class has increased due to the participation of the Bank in the June 2021 ECB TLTRO operation. The Bank proceeded with a TLTRO transaction with the ECB (repurchase agreement) for an amount of €2,3 billion where it pledges bonds to received cash. The cash proceeds where placed in the ECB Target 2 account. In terms of RWAs all exposure classes present a slight decrease except "Corporates", "Institutions" and "Exposures secured by mortgages on immovable property" mainly due to new lending and investment activity.

5.3 Disclosure of the use of standardised approach (continued)

The tables below present the breakdown of exposures by asset class and risk weight for 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CR5 – Standardised approach

30 Ju	ıne 2021 - (€000) *					Risk	Weight					Total	Of which:
Expo	osure Classes ¹⁶	0%	10%	20%	35%	50%	75%	100%	150%	250%	Others (deducted)		unrated (excl. deducted)
1	Central governments or central banks	10.333.681										10.333.681	
2	Regional government or local authorities			2.281								2.281	2.281
3	Public sector entities							5				5	5
4	Multilateral development banks	128.761	-	-								128.761	
5	International organisations	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		0	
6	Institutions	5.616	-	1.189.297		319.054		32.665	0	5.971		1.552.604	58.642
7	Corporates		-	-		33.778	86.681	1.238.100	135.325			1.493.884	1.086.273
8	Retail exposures		-	-			1.112.837					1.112.837	1.112.837
9	Exposures secured by mortgages on immovable property			-	1.164.615	233.883		228.953		-	1	1.627.451	1.627.451
10	Exposures in default							350.975	107.825			458.800	458.800
11	Exposures associated with particularly high risk								212.857		-	212.857	212.857
12	Covered bonds		474.323	167.935								642.258	
13	Exposures to institutions and corporates with a short-term credit assessment	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	-		
14	Units or shares in collective investment undertakings	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A		-	
15	Equity exposures									25.269		25.269	25.269
16	Other items	156.823	0	22.660				415.467		16.401	35.795	647.146	611.351
17	Total	10.624.880	474.323	1.382.173	1.164.615	586.716	1.199.518	2.266.166	456.007	47.641	35.795	18.237.834	5.195.766

^{*} Including Derivatives and Repo

¹⁶ Figures reported include loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

5.3 Disclosure of the use of standardised approach (continued)

31 December 2020 - (€000) * Exposure Classes¹6		Risk Weight										Total	Of which:
		0%	10%	20%	35%	50%	75%	100%	150%	250%	Others (deducted)		unrated (excl. deducted)
1	Central governments or central banks	7.450.578										7.450.578	
2	Regional government or local authorities			2.298							-	2.298	2.298
3	Public sector entities												
4	Multilateral development banks	177.403										177.403	
5	International organisations	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A			
6	Institutions	5.745		1.240.765		269.406		34.347		5.971		1.556.234	22.886
7	Corporates					13.784	90.264	1.243.989	112.774			1.460.811	1.096.618
8	Retail exposures						1.162.476					1.162.476	1.162.476
9	Exposures secured by mortgages on immovable property				1.137.337	249.276		172.407		-		1.559.020	1.559.020
10	Exposures in default							410.268	84.640			494.908	494.908
11	Exposures associated with particularly high risk								243.486			243.486	243.486
12	Covered bonds		475.921	167.602								643.523	
13	Exposures to institutions and corporates with a short-term credit assessment	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A			
14	Units or shares in collective investment undertakings	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	N/A	-		
15	Equity exposures									25.270		25.270	25.270
16	Other items	140.962		23.128				435.472		9.608	36.084	645.254	609.170
17	Total	7.77.688	475.921	1.433.793	1.137.337	532.466	1.252.740	2.296.483	440.900	40.849	36.084	15.421.261	5.216.134

The on-balance sheet amount of "Central government or Central banks" exposure class has increased due to the participation of the Bank in the June 2021 ECB TLTRO operation. The Bank proceeded with a TLTRO transaction with the ECB (repurchase agreement) for an amount of €2,3 billion where it pledges bonds to received cash. The cash proceeds where placed in the ECB Target 2 account. In terms of RWAs all exposure classes present a slight decrease except "Corporates", "Institutions" and "Exposures secured by mortgages on immovable property" mainly due to new lending and investment activity.

5.4 Disclosure of credit risk quality

5.4.1 Non-performing exposures

The tables below disclose information on NPEs based on the definitions of the EBA standards. The definition of credit impaired loans (Stage 3) is aligned to the EBA NPEs definition.

Applicable as at 31 December 2020

The EBA published in 2014 its technical standards with respect to non-performing and forborne exposures which were adopted by the European Commission (EC) through the Commission Implementation Regulation (EU) 2015/1278. Exposures include all debt instruments (loans and advances and debt securities) and off-balance sheet exposures, except those held for trading exposures.

As per the above regulation, the following are considered as NPEs:

- (i) Material exposures that are over 90 days past due,
- (ii) The debtor is assessed as unlikely to pay its credit obligations in full without realisation of collateral, regardless of the existence of any past-due amount or of the number of days past due,
- (iii) Exposures in respect of which a default is considered to have occurred in accordance with Article 178 of Regulation (EU) No 575/2013,
- (iv) Exposures of debtors against whom legal action has been taken by the Bank or exposures of bankrupt debtors.
- (v) Exposures that are found impaired as per the applicable accounting framework,
- (vi) Forborne exposures that were NPE at forbearance or became NPE due to forbearance or NPE after forbearance and which are re-forborne while under probation (the probation period for forborne exposures begins once the contract is considered as performing and lasts for two years minimum),
- (vii) Forborne exposures reclassified from NPE status i.e. that were NPE at forbearance or became NPE due to forbearance or NPE after forbearance and present more than 30 days past due while under probation,
- (viii) Further to the above the all-embracing criteria apply as follows: (a) for debtors classified as retail debtors as per the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013, when the Bank has on-balance sheet exposures to a debtor that are material and are past due by more than 90 days the gross carrying amount of which represents more than 20% of the gross carrying amount of all on-balance sheet exposures to that debtor, all on and off-balance sheet exposures to that debtor shall be considered as non-performing, else only exposures that are non-performing will be classified as such and (b) for debtors classified as non-retail debtors as per the Regulation (EU) No 575/2013, when any on-balance sheet exposure to that debtor is non-performing, all on and off-balance sheet exposures to that debtor shall be considered as NPE.

Applicable as at 1 January 2021

As of 1 January 2021, the Bank has implemented the new default definition under Article 178 of the Capital Requirements Directive. The application of this definition has been aligned to the relevant EBA Guidelines (EBA/GL/2016/07) and the Regulatory Technical Standards on the materiality threshold for Past due credit obligations (EBA/RTS/2016/06). As at 1 January 2021, the impact of this change on the Group's exposures was immaterial.

The following amendments to the default definition have been applied:

- Material days past due Based on regulatory materiality thresholds for Retail and Non-Retail borrowers, the days past due counter will be calculated whenever these thresholds are breached. As a result, a non-performing classification is triggered when materiality thresholds have been breached for more than 90 consecutive days.
- Diminished obligation due to a distressed restructuring Where material forgiveness or postponement
 of principal, interest, or fees to forborne exposures results in a diminished financial obligation of
 previously expected cash flows. Default event is triggered through unlikely to pay criteria regardless of
 material days past due, resulting in a non-performing classification.
- Probation period All non-performing exposures are subject to a 3-month probation period during which, no default entry criteria are met. Once the probation period ends, exposures are re-classified to performing with the exception of non-performing distressed restructurings that continue to undergo a 12-month probation period.

5.4.1 Non-performing exposures (continued)

For more information in relation to non-performing exposures, refer to Section 1.1.1 "Loans and advances" in the "Additional information for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021" of the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 and Notes 19 and 52 of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Loan Portfolio Quality

As part of its NPE deleveraging strategy, the Bank is committed and continues the efforts of exploring all deleveraging options, including the disposals of NPE portfolios. The Bank's effort is developing gradually and steadily, despite the disruptions of the COVID-19 pandemic.

I. Loans and advances portfolios classified as held for sale

The Bank entered into binding agreements to dispose to third parties, portfolios of non-performing loans. Completion was subject to customary, regulatory and other approvals and was expected to take place during 2021. As at 31 December 2020 according to the provisions of IFRS 5 "Non-Current assets held for sale and Discontinued operations" the Group reclassified assets that related to portfolios of non-performing loans held at amortised cost. During the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, loans and advances have been derecognised following the successful completion of the corresponding transaction.

Further analysis of the loans and advances portfolios classified as held for sale is disclosed in Section 1.1.2. "Assets held for sale" in the "Additional information for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021" of the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 and Note 29 of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 and presented separately in Sections 5.4.1.1, 5.4.1.2 and 5.4.2.1 of this report. Loans and advances portfolios classified as held for sale as at 30 June 2021 have been derecognised following the successful completion of the corresponding transaction during September 2021.

II. Project Starlight

The Bank has been working closely together with its advisors towards a sale of a material NPE portfolio ("Project Starlight"), which will expedite the reduction of legacy NPEs and accelerate the Bank's balance sheet clean-up. The transaction is progressing according to a planned timeline where a signing of the transaction is targeted by year end 2021 and a closing in 2022. The execution of Project Starlight transaction remains dependent on prevalent market conditions and third-party interest. The perimeter involved comprises legacy NPEs totalling a gross amount of c.€0,7 billion as of 30 June 2021. Post completion of the transaction the Bank is expected to reach its medium-term target of mid-single digit NPE ratio (excl. APS NPEs).

5.4.1.1 Non-performing exposures by past due days

The tables below present the gross carrying amount, broken down by exposure class, of performing and non-performing exposures, including a further breakdown of past-due exposures by the number of days that they have been past due, as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, respectively.

Template EU CQ3 - Credit quality of performing and non-performing exposures by past due days

5.4.1.1 Non-performing exposures by past due days (continued)

		а	b	b	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I
					(Gross carrying	g amount/r	nominal amo	unt				
	ne 2021	Performing ex	posures		Non-perform	ning exposur	es						
(€000			Not past due or past due ≤ 30 days	Past due > 30 days ≤ 90 days		Unlikely to pay that are not past due or are past due ≤ 90 days	Past due > 90 days ≤ 180 days	Past due > 180 days ≤ 1 year	Past due > 1 year ≤ 2 years	Past due > 2 years ≤ 5 years	Past due > 5 years ≤ 7 years	Past due > 7 years	Of which defaulted
005	Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits	6.724.976	6.724.976	ı	1	-	1	1	1	ı	1		-
010	Loans and advances	5.360.050	5.323.590	36.460	1.472.966	282.074	53.302	50.254	117.995	359.983	95.434	513.924	1.472.966
020	Central banks			-	-			-		-	-		
030	General governments	6.062	6.062		416	416							416
040	Credit institutions	145.410	145.410										
050	Other financial corporations	129.247	129.164	83	10.948	5.087		61	41	1.289	320	4.151	10.948
060	Non-financial corporations	2.024.421	2.019.499	4.922	673.063	143.691	12.149	12.853	23.909	122.115	51.437	306.909	673.063
070	Of which SMEs	1.682.907	1.677.985	4.922	672.818	143.602	12.149	12.853	23.909	121.959	51.437	306.909	672.818
080	Households	3.054.910	3.023.456	31.454	788.539	132.881	41.152	37.340	94.045	236.580	43.677	202.864	788.539
	Loans and advances to customers classified held for sale				51.266	65	161		136	4.947	1.925	44.031	51.266
090	Debt securities	4.752.980	4.752.980	-					-		-		
100	Central banks												
110	General governments	2.104.545	2.104.545								-		
120	Credit institutions	1.896.094	1.896.094										
130	Other financial corporations	685.306	685.306				-						
140	Non-financial corporations	67.035	67.035				-						
150	Off-balance-sheet exposures	1.300.030		-	27.011		-	-		-	-		27.011
160	Central banks			-1							1		
170	General governments	9.527		-1	334						1		334
180	Credit institutions	2.990		1	1		1	1	-	1	1	-	
190	Other financial corporations	21.523		-1	38						-		38
200	Non-financial corporations	900.317			21.749								21.749
210	Households	365.674			4.890								4.890
220	Total*	11.413.060	10.076.570	36.460	1.499.976	282.074	53.302	50.254	117.995	359.983	95.434	513.924	1.499.976

^{*} Total excludes rows "Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits" and "Loans and advances to customers classified held for sale" as per EBA Guidelines.

¹⁷ Numbers may not add up/cross reference due to rounding.

5.4.1.1 Non-performing exposures by past due days (continued)

		а	b	b	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I
					1	Gross carryin	g amount/	nominal amo	unt				
	cember 2020	Performing ex	posures		Non-perfori	ning exposur	es						
(€000			Not past due or past due ≤ 30 days	Past due > 30 days ≤ 90 days		Unlikely to pay that are not past due or are past due ≤ 90 days	Past due > 90 days ≤ 180 days	Past due > 180 days ≤ 1 year	Past due > 1 year ≤ 2 years	Past due > 2 years ≤ 5 years	Past due > 5 years ≤ 7 years	Past due > 7 years	Of which defaulted
005	Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits	3.648.519	3.648.519	-	1	-	1	1	1				
010	Loans and advances	5.548.721	5.514.146	34.575	1.503.215	249.757	25.880	63.940	189.826	333.305	115.838	524.670	1.503.215
020	Central banks	1			1		-	1	1				
030	General governments	4.839	4.835	4	1		-	1	1				
040	Credit institutions	250.249	250.247	2	1		1	1	1				
050	Other financial corporations	139.762	139.702	60	17.147	4.674	-	1	6.982	986	418	4.086	17.147
060	Non-financial corporations	2.018.162	2.011.949	6.213	709.660	144.986	4.661	12.876	46.018	126. <i>44</i> 8	67.384	307.286	709.660
070	Of which SMEs	1.721.328	1.715.115	6.213	709.417	144.894	4.661	12.876	46.018	126.297	67.384	307.286	709.417
080	Households	3.135.708	3.107.413	28.295	776.407	100.097	21.218	51.063	136.826	205.870	48.035	213.298	776.407
	Loans and advances to customers classified held for sale	7	7	-	50.456	215	-	41	92	5.166	4.799	40.144	50.456
090	Debt securities	5.025.278	5.025.278										
100	Central banks												
110	General governments	2.492.840	2.492.840						-				
120	Credit institutions	2.025.889	2.025.889										
130	Other financial corporations	413.834	413.834										
140	Non-financial corporations	92.714	92.714										
150	Off-balance-sheet exposures	1.278.466			42.942								42.942
160	Central banks												
170	General governments	10.454			750								750
180	Credit institutions	2.700											
190	Other financial corporations	22.384			237								237
200	Non-financial corporations	864.344			38.940								38.940
210	Households	378.583			3.015								3.015
220	Total*	11.852.464	10.539.424	34.574	1.546.156	249.757	25.879	63.940	189.826	333.304	115.837	524.670	1.546.156

^{*} Total excludes rows "Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits" and "Loans and advances to customers classified held for sale" as per EBA Guidelines.

The NPEs as at 30 June 2021 amounted to €1.500 million (including off-balance sheet items), compared to €1.546 million as at 31 December 2020, reflecting a reduction of 3%. The reduction in the Non-Performing portfolio was driven by the €74 million non-contractual write offs implemented during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 shared between Private Individuals (37%) and Legal Entities (63%). A significant increase of 84% is observed in Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits due to the participation of the Bank in the June 2021 ECB TLTRO operation. The Bank proceeded with a TLTRO transaction with the ECB (repurchase agreement) for an amount of €2,3 billion where it pledges bonds to received cash. The cash proceeds where placed in the ECB Target 2 account.

5.4.1.2 Performing and non-performing exposures and related provisions

The tables below present the gross carrying amount, accumulated impairment, accumulated negative changes in fair value due to credit risk and provisions, accumulated partial write-off, and collateral and financial guarantees received, for both performing and non-performing exposures, with a breakdown by exposure class and staging, as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CR1 - Performing and non-performing exposures and related provisions

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
30 Jui	ne 2021 ¹⁸		Gross ca	arrying amo	unt/nominal	amount		Accumu		rment, accur lue to credit			es in fair		financial g	eral and guarantees ived ¹⁹
		Perfo	rming expos	sures	Non-pe	rforming exp	posures		ming expos ated impair provisions		accum accumula in fair va	forming exp ulated impa ited negative lue due to c nd provisior	irment, e changes redit risk			On non- performing exposures
			Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3		Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3		-	
005	Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits	6.724.976	6.724.976					18	18				-		-	
010	Loans and advances	5.360.050	4.286.061	977.885	1.472.966		1.472.966	57.458	35.735	50.003	628.098		628.098	955.424	4.362.655	784.771
020	Central banks															
030	General governments	6.062	6.062		416		416	123	123		8		8		2.713	408
040	Credit institutions	145.410	145.410					272	272		-					
050	Other financial corporations	129.247	109.795	19.452	10.948		10.948	2.173	1.365	808	4.295		4.295	6.056	77.067	6.645
060	Non-financial corporations	2.024.421	1.300.966	704.274	673.063		673.063	42.943	10.967	37.143	352.463		352.463	692.334	1.561.267	300.651
070	Of which SMEs	1.682.907	972.129	691.598	672.818		672.818	38.722	9.195	34.695	352.447		352.447	691.531	1.466.812	300.423
080	Households	3.054.910	2.723.828	254.159	788.539		788.539	11.947	23.008	12.052	271.331		271.331	257.035	2.721.608	477.068
	Loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale				51.266	-	51.266				43.765		43.765			2.998

¹⁸ Numbers may not add up/cross reference due to rounding.
¹⁹ Government Guarantee Scheme is not included.

5.4.1.2 Performing and non-performing exposures and related provisions (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
30 Jur (€000)	ne 2021		Gross ca	arrying amou	unt/nominal	amount		Accumu	lated impair value d	ment, accur ue to credit			es in fair		financial g	eral and guarantees ived ¹⁹
		Perfo	rming expos	sures	Non-pe	rforming exp	oosures		ming expos ated impairr provisions		accum accumula in fair va	forming exp ulated impa ited negative lue due to c nd provision	irment, e changes redit risk	Accumula- ted partial write-off	On performing	On non- performing exposures
			Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3		Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3			
090	Debt securities	4.752.980	4.752.980					1.395	1.395							
100	Central banks															
110	General governments	2.104.545	2.104.545					204	204		-					
120	Credit institutions	1.896.094	1.896.094					493	493		1					
130	Other financial corporations	685.306	685.306					348	348		-					
140	Non-financial corporations	67.035	67.035					350	350		1					
150	Off-balance- sheet exposures	1.300.030	1.146.477	150.439	27.011		27.011	11.644	7.696	3.813	4.587		4.587		650.362	11.085
160	Central banks															
170	General governments	9.527	9.357		334		334	54	53		4		4		1.407	334
180	Credit institutions	2.990	2.990					16	16				-		3	-
190	Other financial corporations	21.523	20.930	593	38		38	111	106	5	10		10		6.210	34
200	Non-financial corporations	900.317	757.385	141.172	21.749		21.749	7.412	3.888	3.434	3.769		3.769		475.491	8.130
210	Households	365.674	355.815	8.674	4.890		4.890	4.051	3.635	373	804		804		167.250	2.587
220	Total*	11.413.060	10.185.518	1.128.324	1.499.976		1.499.976	70.496	44.826	53.816	632.685		632.685	955.424	5.013.017	795.856

^{*} Total excludes rows "Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits" and "Loans and advances to customers classified held for sale" as per EBA Guidelines.

5.4.1.2 Performing and non-performing exposures and related provisions (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
31 De∉ (€000)	cember 2020		Gross c	arrying amo	unt/nomina	l amount		Accumu		ment, accur ue to credit	risk and pro				financial g	eral and guarantees ived ¹⁹
		Perfo	rming expo	sures	Non-pe	rforming exp			ming expos ated impairr provisions	ment and	accum accumula in fair va	forming exp ulated impa ited negative lue due to c nd provisior	irment, e changes redit risk	Accumula- ted partial write-off	On performing exposures	On non- performing exposures
			Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3		Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3			exposures
005	Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits	3.648.519	3.648.519													
010	Loans and advances	5.548.721	4.487.993	1.060.728	1.503.215	-	1.503.215	58.825	29.179	29.646	646.229	-	646.229	869.933	4.339.510	801.317
020	Central banks															
030	General governments	4.839	4.835	4				55	53	2					2.302	
040	Credit institutions	250.249	250.241	8				289	289							
050	Other financial corporations	139.762	93.039	46.724	17.147		17.147	3.335	2.581	753	4.978		4.978	9.028	32.843	10.631
060	Non-financial corporations	2.018.162	1.347.582	670.580	709.660		709.660	42.661	10.917	31.744	367.785		367.785	640.350	1.531.963	322.031
070	Of which SMEs	1.721.328	1.050.748	670.580	709.417		709.417	40.397	8.652	31.744	367.639		367.639	640.347	1.459.572	321.806
080	Households	3.135.708	2.792.297	343.412	776.407		776.407	12.486	15.339	(2.853)	273.466		273.466	220.555	2.772.402	468.655
	Loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale	7	-1	7	50.456		50.456				41.741		41.741			4.043
090	Debt securities	5.025.278	5.025.278					1.819	1.819					-	-	
100	Central banks															
110	General governments	2.492.840	2.492.840					260	260							
120	Credit institutions	2.025.889	2.025.889					390	390							
130	Other financial corporations	413.834	413.834					76	76							
140	Non-financial corporations	92.714	92.714					1.093	1.093							

5.4.1.2 Performing and non-performing exposures and related provisions (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
31 De (€000)	cember 2020		Gross ca	arrying amo	unt/nomina	amount		Accumu		rment, accur lue to credit		gative change ovisions	es in fair		financial g	eral and guarantees ived ¹⁹
		Perfo	orming expos	sures	Non-pe	rforming ex	posures		ming expos ated impair provisions	ment and	accun accumul in fair va	rforming exp nulated impa ated negative alue due to c and provisior	irment, e changes redit risk	Accumula- ted partial write-off	On performing	On non- performing exposures
	Stage 1 Stage 1 Off-balance-			Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3		Of which stage 1	Of which stage 2		Of which stage 2	Of which stage 3			
150	Off-balance- sheet exposures	1.278.466	1.083.854	194.612	42.942		42.942	12.508	9.202		5.806		5.806		685.486	17.265
160	Central banks															
170	General governments	10.454	10.434	21	750		750	72	72		8		8		1.443	750
180	Credit institutions	2.700		2.700				5	5		-				3	
190	Other financial corporations	22.384	723	21.661	237		237	148	97	51	33		33		6.520	232
200	Non-financial corporations	864.344	707.590	156.753	38.940		38.940	7.532	4.693	2.839	5.145		5.145		498.623	15.069
210	Households	378.583	365.107	13.477	3.015		3.015	4.752	4.335	417	620		620		178.896	1.214
220	Total*	11.852.464	10.597.126	1.255.340	1.546.156		1.546.156	73.153	40.200	32.952	652.035		652.035	869.933	5.024.996	818.582

^{*} Total excludes rows "Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits" and "Loans and advances to customers classified held for sale" as per EBA Guidelines.

An overall reduction was observed in the total performing portfolio driven by the repayments of loans and advances and maturities of debt securities during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021. A significant increase of 84% is observed in Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits due to the participation of the Bank in the June 2021 ECB TLTRO operation. The Bank proceeded with a TLTRO transaction with the ECB (repurchase agreement) for an amount of €2,3 billion where it pledges bonds to received cash. The cash proceeds where placed in the ECB Target 2 account.

5.4.1.3 Quality of non-performing exposures by geography

The tables below present the gross carrying amount of performing and non-performing exposures and the related accumulated impairment, provisions and accumulated negative changes in fair value due to credit risk by geographical location as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CQ4 - Quality of non-performing exposures by geography

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g
30 1	ine 2021	Gross carryin	g/nominal amo	unt			Provisions on	Accumulated
(€000			Of which nor	n-performing			off-balance-	negative
(6000				Of which defaulted	Of which subject to impairment	Accumulated impairment	sheet commitments and financial guarantees given	changes in fair value due to credit risk on non-performing exposures
010	On-balance-sheet exposures	11.585.996	1.472.966	1.472.966	11.585.996	686.951		
020	Cyprus	8.446.215	1.442.159	1.442.159	8.446.215	667.836		
030	Greece	173.091	1.940	1.940	173.091	1.383		-
040	France	411.292	11	11	411.292	253		1
050	United Kingdom	447.158	15.295	15.295	447.158	8.785		
060	Canada	221.827	-	-	221.827	45		
070	Other countries*	1.886.412	13.560	13.560	1.886.412	8.649		
080	Off-balance-sheet exposures	1.327.041	27.011	27.011			16.231	
090	Cyprus	1.289.644	26.938	26.938			16.187	
100	Greece	12.884	-	-			11	
110	France	5.931	-	-			1	
120	United Kingdom	326	2	2			2	
130	Canada	18						
140	Other countries*	18.238	70	70			30	
150	Total	12.913.037	1.499.976	1.499.976	11.585.996	686.951	16.231	

^{*} Exposures to supranational organisations are reported in "Other countries".

²⁰ Figures reported exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs and cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits.

5.4.1.3 Quality of non-performing exposures by geography (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g
21 D	ecember 2020	Gross carryin	g/nominal am	ount			Provisions on	Accumulated
(€000				n-performing			off-balance-	negative
(000	·/			Of which defaulted	Of which subject to impairment	Accumulated impairment	sheet commitments and financial guarantees given	changes in fair value due to credit risk on non-performing exposures
010	On-balance-sheet exposures ²¹	12.231.615	1.503.215	1.503.215	12.231.615	706.872		
020	Cyprus	8.857.710	1.474.421	1.474.421	8.857.710	687.153		
030	Greece	227.914	1.496	1.496	227.914	776		
040	France	415.303		-	415.303	394		-
050	United Kingdom	467.891	15.064	15.064	467.891	8.976		
060	Canada	222.018		-	222.018	45		
070	Other countries*	2.040.779	12.234	12.234	2.040.779	9.528		
080	Off-balance-sheet exposures	1.321.407	42.942	42.942			18.314	
090	Cyprus	1.316.750	42.924	42.877			18.288	
100	Greece	1.789	4	4			9	
110	France	8		-			-	
120	United Kingdom	295	2	2			2	
130	Canada	20					-	
140	Other countries*	2.545	12	59			15	
150	Total	13.553.023	1.546.157	1.546.157	12.231.615	706.872	18.314	

^{*} Exposures to supranational organisations are reported in "Other countries".

The on-balance sheet exposures have reduced for all countries because of the reduction in both loans and advances and debt securities portfolios. Performing exposures have reduced due to repayments and the reduction in the non-performing loans and advances is driven by the non-contractual write-offs implemented during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021. Investments in debt securities have decreased mainly due to maturities during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021.

²¹ The figures reported for 31 December 2020 have been restated, in order to be comparable with current period figures, to be in with the latest EBA Guidelines on Pillar II disclosures.

5.4.1.4 Credit quality of loans and advances to non-financial corporations by industry

The tables below present the gross carrying amount of loans and advances to non-financial corporations, and the related accumulated impairment and accumulated negative changes in fair value due to credit risk by counterparty sector relating to non-financial corporation counterparty as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CQ5 - Credit quality of loans and advances to non-financial corporations by industry

		а	b	С	d	е	f
		Gross carryi	ng amount				Accumulated
	une 2021		Of which non	-performing			negative
(€00	D) ²²			Of which defaulted	Of which loans and advances subject to impairment	Accumulated impairment	changes in fair value due to credit risk on non- performing exposures
010	Agriculture, forestry and fishing	45.970	12.736	12.736	45.970	7.298	
020	Mining and quarrying	10.953	896	896	10.953	800	1
030	Manufacturing	370.857	53.923	53.923	370.857	34.931	-
040	Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply	40.769	510	510	40.769	956	
050	Water supply	40.522	1.060	1.060	40.522	162	-
060	Construction	334.940	188.185	188.185	334.940	109.455	1
070	Wholesale and retail trade	521.866	164.331	164.331	521.866	111.289	-
080	Transport and storage	263.708	12.192	12.192	263.708	8.917	
090	Accommodation and food service activities	515.849	76.121	76.121	515.849	60.399	
100	Information and communication	37.984	4.379	4.379	37.984	2.842	
110	Financial and insurance activities			-			
120	Real estate activities	258.051	117.180	117.180	258.051	39.422	
130	Professional, scientific and technical activities	59.381	8.192	8.192	59.381	3.836	
140	Administrative and support service activities	36.288	5.121	5.121	36.288	4.358	
150	Public administration and defence, compulsory social security						
160	Education	20.305	9.833	9.833	20.305	4.550	
170	Human health services and social work activities	93.927	2.265	2.265	93.927	2.475	
180	Arts, entertainment and recreation	28.262	14.016	14.016	28.262	2.778	-
190	Other services	17.852	2.124	2.124	17.852	940	
200	Total	2.697.484	673.063	673.063	2.697.484	395.406	

²² Figures reported exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

5.4.1.4 Credit quality of loans and advances to non-financial corporations by industry (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f
		Gross carryi	ng amount				Accumulated
	ecember 2020		Of which nor	-performing			negative
(€00	D) ²²			Of which defaulted	Of which loans and advances subject to impairment	Accumulated impairment	changes in fair value due to credit risk on non- performing exposures
010	Agriculture, forestry and fishing	47.478	14.986	14.986	47.478	7.673	
020	Mining and quarrying	11.902	1.242	1.242	11.902	1.157	
030	Manufacturing	359.047	58.150	58.150	359.047	36.566	1
040	Electricity, gas, steam and air conditioning supply	43.758	573	573	43.758	1.207	
050	Water supply	45.259	594	594	45.259	308	
060	Construction	361.118	214.732	214.732	361.118	118.792	1
070	Wholesale and retail trade	542.121	170.844	170.844	542.121	115.172	
080	Transport and storage	264.031	14.154	14.154	264.031	9.581	1
090	Accommodation and food service activities	511.851	78.476	78.476	511.851	56.654	1
100	Information and communication	26.976	4.296	4.296	26.976	2.983	1
110	Financial and insurance activities					1	1
120	Real estate activities	256.157	112.328	112.328	256.157	41.835	-
130	Professional, scientific and technical activities	59.147	6.985	6.985	59.147	3.279	
140	Administrative and support service activities	29.942	5.408	5.408	29.942	4.619	-
150	Public administration and defence, compulsory social security						-
160	Education	20.383	9.113	9.113	20.383	3.938	-
170	Human health services and social work activities	101.633	2.404	2.404	101.633	2.867	
180	Arts, entertainment and recreation	27.952	13.502	13.502	27.952	2.705	-
190	Other services	19.068	1.875	1.875	19.068	1.108	-
200	Total	2.727.822	709.660	709.660	2.727.822	410.446	

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, a decrease of €37 million was observed in the non-performing loans to non-financial corporations, driven mainly by the resolution of non-performing loans in the Construction industry (€27 million). Reduction of non-performing loans has been achieved through the non-contractual write offs implemented during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, of which €17 million relates to Construction industry, and through the implementation of Debt to Asset swaps, foreclosures and write-offs performed.

5.4.1.5 Collateral valuation - loans and advances

The tables below present the gross carrying amount of loans and advances collateralised, both performing and non-performing, broken down by loan-to-value bucket, the related accumulated impairment, and the value of the collateral/financial guarantees received and the partial write-offs for these exposures, as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively. All this information is broken down by ageing analysis.

Template EU CQ6 - Collateral valuation - loans and advances

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I
		Loans and	advances										
	une 2021		Performing		Non-perform	ing							
(€000	0) ^{23,24}					Unlikely to	Past due >	90 days					
				Of which past due > 30 days ≤ 90 days		pay that are not past due or are past due ≤ 90 days		Of which past due > 90 days ≤ 180 days	Of which: past due > 180 days ≤ 1 year	Of which: past due > 1 years ≤ 2 years	Of which: past due > 2 years ≤ 5 years	Of which: past due > 5 years ≤ 7 years	Of which: past due > 7 years
010	Gross carrying amount	6.833.015	5.360.050	36.460	1.472.966	282.074	1.190.892	53.302	50.254	117.995	359.983	95.434	513.924
020	Of which secured	6.003.777	4.651.588	32.909	1.352.189	258.325	1.093.864	48.631	45.536	107.416	337.560	85.582	469.138
030	Of which secured with immovable property	5.518.259	4.185.620	31.892	1.332.639	251.428	1.081.211	47.901	44.876	105.846	332.640	85.025	464.922
040	Of which instruments with LTV higher than 60% and lower or equal to 80%	991.679	829.988		161.691	35.758	125.933						
050	Of which instruments with LTV higher than 80% and lower or equal to 100%	477.050	338.572		138.478	32.256	106.222						
060	Of which instruments with LTV higher than 100%	1.015.232	329.376		685.856	30.395	655.461						
070	Accumulated impairment for secured assets	568.171	41.008	2.067	527.163	42.749	484.415	7.653	9.954	24.504	101.163	42.758	298.384

 $^{^{23}}$ Figures reported exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs. 24 Numbers may not add up/cross reference due to rounding.

5.4.1.5 Collateral valuation - loans and advances (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I
		Loans and	advances										
	une 2021		Performing		Non-perform	ning							
(€000	0) ^{23,24}					Unlikely to	Past due > 9	90 days					
				Of which past due > 30 days ≤ 90 days		pay that are not past due or are past due ≤ 90 days		Of which past due > 90 days ≤ 180 days	Of which: past due > 180 days ≤ 1 year	Of which: past due > 1 years ≤ 2 years	Of which: past due > 2 years ≤ 5 years	Of which: past due > 5 years ≤ 7 years	Of which: past due > 7 years
080	Collateral												
090	Of which value capped at the value of exposure	5.053.938	4.277.955	30.015	775.983	201.918	574.065	38.573	33.869	79.150	218.626	41.117	162.730
100	Of which immovable property	4.672.724	3.903.885	29.283	768.839	197.590	571.249	38.046	33.454	78.593	217.664	41.034	162.458
110	Of which value above the cap	893.455	506.500	3.690	386.955	62.573	324.382						
120	Of which immovable property	835.271	450.967	3.630	384.304	61.215	323.090						
130	Financial guarantees received	93.488	84.700	107	8.788	3.087	5.701	208	355	811	2.838	177	1.312
140	Accumulated partial write-off	955.424	7.515	7	947.909	13.616	934.294	2.143	1.392	2.368	53.710	61.376	813.304

5.4.1.5 Collateral valuation - loans and advances (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	
		Loans and	advances											
	ecember 2020		Performing		Non-perform	ing								
(€000	J) ^{25,24}					Unlikely to		Past due > 90 days						
				Of which past due > 30 days ≤ 90 days		pay that are not past due or are past due ≤ 90 days		Of which past due > 90 days ≤ 180 days	Of which: past due > 180 days ≤ 1 year	Of which: past due > 1 years ≤ 2 years	Of which: past due > 2 years ≤ 5 years	Of which: past due > 5 years ≤ 7 years	Of which: past due > 7 years	
	Gross carrying amount	10.700.455	9.197.240	34.575	1.503.215	249.757	1.253.458	25.880	63.940	189.826	333.305	115.838	524.670	
020	Of which secured	5.995.914	4.612.428	31.429	1.383.486	229.044	1.154.442	22.516	58.111	175.232	312.810	106.724	479.049	
030	Of which secured with immovable property	5.606.332	4.241.829	29.986	1.364.503	223.855	1.140.648	22.145	56.811	172.904	308.080	105.856	474.852	
040	Of which instruments with LTV higher than 60% and lower or equal to 80%	997.954	835.549		162.405	29.615	132.791							
050	Of which instruments with LTV higher than 80% and lower or equal to 100%	511.986	341.159		170.827	80.489	90.338							
060	Of which instruments with LTV higher than 100%	1.051.135	381.112		670.023	28.834	641.189							
070	Accumulated impairment for secured assets	581.354	36.580	2.198	544.774	46.200	498.574	2.957	10.183	40.601	84.294	55.214	305.325	
080	Collateral													
090	Of which value capped at the value of exposure	5.047.360	4.254.651	28.052	792.709	174.464	618.245	18.627	44.980	125.870	213.871	49.778	165.119	
100	Of which immovable property	4.737.212	3.953.581	27.181	783.631	171.878	611.753	18.429	44.538	121.225	213.075	49.689	164.797	
110	Of which value above the cap	936.577	561.077	2.820	375.500	55.484	320.015	4.633	13.181	46.328	94.392	31.023	130.458	
120	Of which immovable property	875.081	501.794	2.751	373.286	54.534	318.752	4.625	13.138	46.255	93.476	30.987	130.271	
130	Financial guarantees received	93.467	84.859	431	8.608	2.014	6.594	123	846	1.082	2.946	315	1.284	
140	Accumulated partial write-off	869.933	9.851	339	860.081	10.404	849.678	312	631	21.613	45.918	64.833	716.372	

5.4.1.6 Changes in the stock of non-performing loans and advances and related net accumulated recoveries

The tables below present the movements of the gross carrying amount of non-performing loans and advances from 1 January 2021 to 30 June 2021 and from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020 respectively, with specific details on the net accumulated recoveries related to these changes.

Template EU CR2a - Changes in the stock of non-performing loans and advances and related net accumulated recoveries

<i>(6</i> 00 <i>(</i>	31/25	а	b	а	b
(€000	J)	30 Jur	ne 2021	31 Decem	ber 2020
		Gross carrying amount	Related net accumulated recoveries	Gross carrying amount	Related net accumulated recoveries
010	Initial stock of non-performing loans and advances	1.553.671		2.275.828	
020	Inflows to non-performing portfolios	205.486		267.530	
030	Outflows from non-performing portfolios	(286.192)		(1.040.143)	
040	Outflow to performing portfolio	(24.755)		(103.616)	
050	Outflow due to loan repayment, partial or total	(61.367)		(107.709)	
060	Outflow due to collateral liquidations	(1.215)	(1.214)	(1.490)	(1.470)
070	Outflow due to taking possession of collateral	(16.946)	(14.058)	(67.922)	(52.193)
080	Outflow due to sale of instruments		-	-	
090	Outflow due to risk transfers	-	-	-	
100	Outflows due to write-offs	(83.274)		(642.120)	
110	Outflow due to other situations	(45.053)		(62.061)	
120	Outflow due to reclassification as held for sale	(53.581)		(55.225)	
130	Final stock of non-performing loans and advances	1.472.966		1.503.215	

The Bank continues its efforts to limit its non-performing exposures. During the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, the Non-Performing book was reduced by €30 million, mainly driven by the implementation of €74 million non-contractual write offs, cures of accounts successfully meeting the non-performing exposure exit criteria, repayments following successful restructurings of accounts pending reclassification to performing during probation period and through sale or repossession of collaterals.

٠-

 $^{^{\}rm 25}$ Figures reported exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

5.4.1.7 Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes

The tables below present the value at initial recognition of collateral obtained by taking possession and held in the Group's Statement of financial position as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020, as well as the accumulated negative changes of the respective collaterals. Foreclosed assets (assets repossessed consensually and non-consensually) are reported by asset category.

Template EU CQ7 - Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes

		Collateral obtained	by taking possession
30 Jui	ne 2021 - (€000)	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes
010	Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)		
020	Other than PP&E	240.320	(50.423)
030	Residential immovable property	24.309	(856)
040	Commercial Immovable property	216.011	(49.567)
050	Movable property (auto, shipping, etc.)		
060	Equity and debt instruments		
070	Other collateral		
080	Total	240.320	(50.423)

		Collateral obtained	by taking possession
31 De	cember 2020 - (€000)	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes
010	Property, plant and equipment (PP&E)		
020	Other than PP&E	259.111	(51.936)
030	Residential immovable property	24.391	(907)
040	Commercial Immovable property	234.719	(51.028)
050	Movable property (auto, shipping, etc.)		
060	Equity and debt instruments		
070	Other collateral		
080	Total	259.111	(51.936)

5.4.1.8 Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes – vintage breakdown

The tables below present the gross carrying amount and the related accumulated negative changes of debts cancelled in exchange for the collateral obtained by taking possession, the value at initial recognition and the accumulated negative changes to the initial value of the collateral obtained, including vintage breakdown of the foreclosed assets as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively. Foreclosed assets (assets repossessed consensually and non-consensually) are reported by asset category.

Template EU CQ8 - Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes - vintage breakdown

				Total collater	al obtained by	taking possess	sion						
30 Ju	ıne 2021 - (€000)	Debt balance reduction				Foreclosed	•	vea	>2 years <=5 ars	Foreclosed	d >5 years	Of which: n assets hel	
		Gross carrying amount	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes
010	Collateral obtained by taking possession classified as PP&E												
020	Collateral obtained by taking possession other than that classified as PP&E	415.201	(174.881)	240.320	(50.423)	90.188	(403)	106.656	(10.562)	43.476	(39.458)		
030	Residential immovable property	39.340	(15.031)	24.309	(856)	18.610	(60)	5.488	(686)	211	(110)		
040	Commercial immovable property	375.861	(159.850)	216.011	(49.567)	71.578	(342)	101.168	(9.876)	43.265	(39.348)		
050	Movable property (auto, shipping, etc.)				1								
060	Equity and debt instruments				-	-	-		-	-			
070	Other collateral					1	1		1	1			
080	Total	415.201	(174.881)	240.320	(50.423)	90.188	(403)	106.656	(10.562)	43.476	(39.458)		

5.4.1.8 Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes – vintage breakdown (continued)

		Debt	balance	Total collater	al obtained by	taking posses	sion						
31 De	ecember 2020 - (€000)	reduction				Foreclosed	<=2 years		>2 years <=5 ars	Foreclosed	d >5 years	Of which: n assets he	
		Gross Accumulated carrying negative amount changes		Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition Accumulate negative changes		Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes	Value at initial recognition	Accumulated negative changes
010	Collateral obtained by taking possession classified as PP&E	-											
020	Collateral obtained by taking possession other than that classified as PP&E	445.271	(186.160)	259.111	(51.936)	107.399	(1.697)	108.236	(10.988)	43.476	(39.251)	1	
030	Residential immovable property	37.209	(12.818)	24.391	(907)	19.702	(233)	4.527	(578)	162	(96)		
040	Commercial immovable property	408.062	(173.343)	234.719	(51.028)	87.697	(1.464)	103.709	(10.410)	43.314	(39.154)		
050	Movable property (auto, shipping, etc.)											-1-	-1
060	Equity and debt instruments											-	
070	Other collateral	-			-				-	-			
080	Total	445.271	(186.160)	259.111	(51.936)	107.399	(1.697)	108.236	(10.988)	43.476	(39.251)		

5.4.1.9 Maturity of exposures

The tables below disclose the net exposure value by residual maturities of loans and advances and debt securities as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CR1-A - Maturity of exposures

		а	b	С	d	е	f						
30	June 2021 - (€000)		Net exposure value ²⁶										
30 3	Julie 2021 - (€000)	On	<= 1 year	> 1 year <=	> 5 years	No stated	Total						
		Demand		5 years		maturity							
1	Loans and advances	653.018	84.864	989.640	4.419.938	-	6.147.460						
2	Debt securities		930.177	3.330.560	490.848	-	4.751.585						
3	Total	653.018	1.015.041	4.320.200	4.910.786		10.899.045						

		а	b	С	d	е	f						
24 [December 2020 - (€000) ²⁷		Net exposure value ²⁶										
311	December 2020 - (€000)	On	<= 1 year	> 1 year <=	> 5 years	No stated	Total						
		Demand		5 years		maturity							
1	Loans and advances	652.316	191.671	999.057	4.503.834		6.346.878						
2	Debt securities	1	1.157.483	3.366.872	499.104		5.023.459						
3	Total	652.316	1.349.154	4.365.929	5.002.938		11.370.337						

other demand deposits.

The figures reported for 31 December 2020 have been restated, in order to be comparable with current period figures, to be in with the latest EBA Guidelines on Pillar III disclosures.

²⁶ Figures reported exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs and cash balances at central banks and

5.4.2 Forborne exposures

According to the European Banking Authority's (EBA) technical standards, forborne exposures are (i) exposures which involve changes in their terms and/or conditions and (ii) the forbearance measures consist of concessions towards a debtor which aim to address existing or anticipated difficulties on the part of the borrower to service debt in accordance with the current repayment schedule. Changes in the terms and conditions of a contract that do not occur because the customer is not able to meet the terms and conditions of the contract due to financial difficulties do not constitute forbearance measures.

The most significant prerequisite for the forbearance of an exposure is the existence of customer repayment ability i.e. the customer is viable. The Bank's Restructuring Policy includes the terms and conditions on which the Bank determines whether a renegotiated repayment schedule shall be granted.

The forbearance measures to be taken and their duration thereof are determined based on specific customer information, based on the prevailing economic conditions and in accordance with relevant legislation or regulatory Directives.

Every effort is taken by the Bank for the proper assessment of the new repayment schedule based on the forbearance measures, in order to avoid a new default.

For more information in relation to forborne exposures, refer to Section 1.1.1 "Loans and advances" in the "Additional information for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021" of the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021 and Notes 19 and 52 of the Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

5.4.2.1 Credit quality of forborne exposures

The tables below present the gross carrying amount, the related accumulated impairment, accumulated changes in fair value due to credit risk and provisions, and the collateral and financial guarantees received, of forborne exposures, broken down by exposure class, as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CQ1 - Credit quality of forborne exposures

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	
30 Ju (€000	ine 2021)) ²⁸			nt/nominal am earance mea		impai accumulate changes in due to cree	nulated rment, ed negative n fair value dit risk and sions	Collateral received and financial guarantees received on forborne exposures		
			Non-p	erforming for	rborne	_			Of which	
		Performing forborne		Of which defaulted	Of which impaired	On performing forborne exposures	On non- performing forborne exposures		collateral and financial guarantees received on non-performing exposures with forbearance measures	
005	Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits								-	
010	Loans and advances	324.025	682.168	682.168	682.168	6.847	225.895	704.138	418.718	
020	Central banks									
030	General governments		416	416	416		8	408	408	
040	Credit institutions									
050	Other financial corporations	284	7.100	7.100	7.100	3	2.241	5.140	4.859	
060	Non-financial corporations	214.578	346.404	346.404	346.404	13.772	145.281	382.119	188.657	
070	Households	109.162	328.247	328.247	328.247	(6.928)	78.365	316.471	224.794	
	Loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale		4.885	4.885	4.885		2.592	2.225	2.225	
080	Debt Securities									
090	Loan commitments given	2.122	3.753	3.753	3.753	75	352	3.941	2.385	
100	Total	326.147	685.920	685.920	685.920	6.922	226.247	708.078	421.103	

 $^{^{\}rm 28}$ Numbers may not add up/cross reference due to rounding.

5.4.2.1 Credit quality of forborne exposures (continued)

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	
31 D∈ (€000	ecember 2020 0) ²⁸		•	t/nominal an earance mea		accumulate changes in f to credit	I impairment, ed negative air value due risk and sions	Collateral received and financial guarantees received on forborne exposures		
		Performing forborne	Non-p	erforming fo Of which defaulted	Of which impaired	On performing forborne exposures	On non- performing forborne exposures		Of which collateral and financial guarantees received on non-performing exposures with forbearance measures	
005	Cash balances at central banks and other demand deposits			-						
010	Loans and advances	247.016	706.461	706.461	706.461	(2.168)	226.941	648.626	443.999	
020	Central banks									
030	General governments					-				
040	Credit institutions			1		1				
050	Other financial corporations	305	13.714	13.714	13.714	3	3.306	9.178	8.877	
060	Non-financial corporations	113.972	370.664	370.664	370.664	8.090	149.633	300.547	207.034	
070	Households	132.739	322.083	322.083	322.083	(10.262)	74.003	338.901	228.088	
	Loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale		7.130	7.130	7.130		3.837	3.193	3.193	
080	Debt Securities			-		-				
090	Loan commitments given	1.748	5.230	5.230	5.230	84	348	4.890	3.908	
100	Total	248.764	718.820	718.820	718.820	(2.085)	231.126	656.708	451.100	

During the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, an increase was observed in the Performing Forborne accounts, following the expiration of suspension of instalments of capital and interest (loan moratorium). Reduction of Non-Performing Forborne accounts has achieved through the non-contractual write-offs implemented during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021, of which €17 million relates to Non-Performing Forborne accounts.

5.4.2.2 Quality of forbearance

The tables below present the gross carrying amount of forborne exposures that have been forborne more than twice, as well as the gross carrying amount of the non-performing forborne exposures that have failed to meet the non-performing exit criteria, as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020 respectively.

Template EU CQ2 - Quality of forbearance

30 Ju	une 2021	а			
(€000	D) ²⁹	Gross carrying amount of forborne exposures			
010	Loans and advances that have been forborne more than twice	195.701			
020	Non-performing forborne loans and advances that failed to meet the non-performing exit criteria	605.539			

_	ecember 2020	а
(€000)) ²⁹	Gross carrying amount of forborne exposures
010	Loans and advances that have been forborne more than twice	78.342
020	Non-performing forborne loans and advances that failed to meet the non-performing exit criteria	574.184

-

²⁹ Figures reported exclude loans and advances to customers classified as held for sale as per IFRSs.

5.5 Disclosure of exposures to counterparty credit risk

Exposures to Counterparty Credit Risk (CCR) and Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) Risk

Article 432 of CRR provides that Institutions have the right to omit one or more disclosure requirements if the information provided by such disclosures is not regarded as material. Information in disclosures shall be regarded as material if its omission or misstatement could change or influence the assessment or decision of a user relying on that information for the purpose of making economic decisions.

Pursuant to EBA Guidelines on materiality, proprietary and confidentiality and on disclosure frequency under Articles 432(1), 432(2) and 433 of CRR, the BoD has decided that the disclosure requirements of Article 439 of CRR and information relating to Credit Valuation Adjustment Risk (CVA Risk) to be omitted from Pillar III disclosures since the information provided under this Article is not regarded as material for the Bank, as per the Provisions of the said guidelines.

The information requirements of Article 439 relate to Derivative Exposures while the information on CVA risk relates specifically to Over-The-Counter Derivative Exposures of the Bank. This information has been assessed as non-material based on:

- Business model of the Bank and its long-term strategy to which derivative positions are assessed as nonrelevant.
- The size of the derivative and SFTs exposures both in terms of gross exposure (2% of total exposure) and in terms of Risk Weighted Asset Base (0,2% of Credit RWA).
- The size of CVA Risk in terms of Risk Weighted Asset Base (0,1% of Total RWA)
- Impact on the overall risk profile of the institution which is deemed as negligible based on the amount and nature of the exposure.

It is noted that the methodology for calculating the exposure in derivatives has changed according to the CRR II revised rules. The Bank has chosen to follow the "Original exposure method" due to the small size of its derivatives portfolio.

The size of the derivatives portfolio has not changed significantly in June 2021 compared to December 2020. However, the reported exposure of the derivatives increased significantly from €5,1 million in December 2020 to €30,8 million in June 2021 due to the changes in the methodology followed under CRR II. In a similar way the Risk Weighted Assets of derivatives increased from €1,9 million in December 2020 to €9,2 million in June 2021.

In addition, during June 2021 there was a new position in an SFT. This derives from a TLTRO transaction with the European Central Bank. Under this transaction, the Bank has borrowed €2,3 billion from the ECB against a pool of eligible collateral pledged by the Bank. This transaction has zero risk weight due to the counterparty.

Is it noted that the templates that have been omitted due to materiality are EU CCR1, EU CCR2, EU CCR3 and EU CCR5.

The materiality of the disclosure requirements included in Article 439 and information related to CVA Risk will be re-assessed every six months.

5.6 Disclosures on measures applied in response to the COVID-19 outbreak

Loan moratorium

In the light of the COVID-19 crisis, a first moratorium was applied, as voted by the Cyprus Parliament, to all individuals or legal entities across different sectors who applied and were eligible under the scheme (suspension of instalments of capital and interest for a period of nine months) until 31 December 2020. The gross carrying amount of the loans and advances subject to the first moratorium, which expired, on loan repayments amounted to €2,6 billion as at 30 June 2021 (31 December 2020: €2,8 billion), comprising of gross loans to Households of €1,4 billion (31 December 2020: €1,5 billion), and gross loans to Non-financial corporations of €1,2 billion (31 December 2020: €1,3 billion).

Following the expiration of the first moratorium on 31 December 2020, a second scheme for the suspension of instalments of capital and interest (loan moratorium) was introduced in January 2021 until 30 June 2021, as announced by the Cyprus Government on 15 January 2021, for customers impacted by the second lockdown, subject to certain criteria. Under the second moratorium scheme, payment deferrals may be offered until 30 June 2021, however, the total months under loan moratorium, when including the loan moratorium offered in 2020, should not exceed a total of nine months. The application period for the second moratorium scheme expired on 31 January 2021 and the assessment was completed on 28 February 2021. The gross carrying amount of the loans and advances subject to the second moratorium amounted to €23,5 million as at 30 June 2021, comprising of gross loans to Households of €10,7 million and gross loans to Non-financial corporations of €12,7 million.

Following expiry of the first moratorium, payment behaviour continues to be encouraging, with repayments duly met for 97% of such borrowers (excluding the loans covered by the APS agreement) which participated in the first moratorium and had a payment fall due by the end of June 2021. Nevertheless, the Bank continues to adopt an appropriately prudent approach and is in readiness in terms of monitoring procedures and day-to-day management of the accounts to deal with early arrears. The Bank's total performing portfolio in arrears remains at lower levels compared to pre-COVID 19 levels (48% of February 2020 performing arrears stock), as at the end of June 2021.

COVID-19 Template 1: Information on loans and advances subject to legislative and non-legislative moratoria

The table below provides an overview of the credit quality of loans and advances subject to the second scheme (as described above) for the suspension of instalments of capital and interest (loan moratorium), on loan repayments applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis as at 30 June 2021. The type of eligible moratorium granted was the suspension of instalments of capital and interest for a period of six months. Moratorium was applied to all eligible individuals or legal entities across different sectors.

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
30 J	une 2021			Gross	carrying am	nount			Accumulat	ed impair	ment, accun	nulated nega credit risk	ative chang	ges in fair va	alue due to	Gross carrying amount
		-			Performing		No	n-performing				Performing		No	n-performing	
				of which	of which		of which	of which			of which	of which		of which	-	Inflows to
					Instruments		exposures					Instruments		exposures	,	non-
				with	with			pay that are			with	with			pay that are	
				forbearance	significant		forbearance				forbearance			forbearance		exposures
				measures	increase in credit risk			past-due or past-due <=			measures	increase in credit risk		measures	past-due or past-due <=	
					since initial			90 days				since initial			90 days	
					recognition			oo aayo				recognition			oo aayo	
					but not							but not				
					credit							credit				
					impaired							impaired				
	-	Class	CIOOO	GIOOO	(Stage 2)	Class	Glass	Glass	Class	Glass	CIOOO	(Stage 2)	CIOCO	CIOOO	Giana	CIOOO
		€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000
1	Loans and advances subject to moratorium	23.477	22.483		11.478	993		993	(785)	(791)		(725)	7		7	
2	of which: Households	10.734	9.821		1.402	913	-	913	(144)		1	(68)	(22)		(22)	
3	of which: Collateralised by residential immovable	101101	0.02.			0.0		0.0	()	(:=:)		(00)	(==)		(==)	
	property	9.810	9.041		1.232	769		769	(110)	(90)		(55)	(20)		(20)	
4	of which: Non-financial								` ,			` ′			` ′	
	corporations	12.743	12.662		10.076	80		80	(641)	(670)		(658)	29		29	
5	of which: Small and															
L_	Medium-sized Enterprises	12.743	12.662		10.076	80		80	(641)	(670)		(658)	29		29	
6	of which: Collateralised by															
	commercial immovable property	12.576	12.496		10.020	80		80	(667)	(665)		(656)	(2)		(2)	

The "exposures with forbearance measures" columns report exposures subject to legislative moratorium that are also subject to other COVID-19-related forbearance measures.

COVID-19 Template 1: Information on loans and advances subject to legislative and non-legislative moratoria (continued)

The table below provides an overview of the credit quality of loans and advances subject to moratorium on loan repayments applied in the light of the COVID-19 crisis as at 31 December 2020. The type of eligible moratorium granted was the suspension of instalments of capital and interest for a period of nine months. Moratorium was applied to all eligible individuals or legal entities across different sectors.

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
31	December 2020			Gross	s carrying am	ount			Accumula	ted impair	ment, accun	nulated nega credit risk	tive chan	ges in fair va	alue due to	Gross carrying amount
					Performing		No	n-performing				Performing		No	n-performing	
				of which	of which		of which	of which			of which	of which		of which	of which	
					Instruments		exposures	,				Instruments		exposures		Inflows to
				with				pay that are			with	with			pay that are	
				forbearance	significant		forbearance				forbearance	U		forbearance	not	performing
				measures	increase in			past-due or			measures				past-due or	exposures
					credit risk			past-due <=				credit risk since initial			past-due <=	
					since initial recognition			90 days				recognition			90 days	
					but not							but not				
					credit							credit				
					impaired							impaired				
					(Stage 2)							(Stage 2)				
		€'000	€'000	€'000		€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000		€'000	€'000	€'000
1	Loans and advances subject															
	to moratorium	2.758.376	2.594.460		462.956	163.916		162.572	(62.314)	(24.223)		(9.827)	(38.091)		(37.848)	
2	of which: Households	1.472.611	1.431.929		125.431	40.682		40.553	(8.032)	530		7.374	(8.562)		(8.525)	
3																
	residential immovable															
	property	1.130.545	1.106.815		91.728	23.730		23.714	858	2.911		5.000	(2.053)		(2.048)	
4	of which: Non-financial	4 004 070	4 4 40 007		000 005	440 500		447.050	(50,000)	(0.4.000)		(47.470)	(00.005)		(00.000)	
Η,	corporations	1.261.873	1.143.307		336.025	118.566		117.352	(52.968)	(24.663)		(17.178)	(28.305)		(28.099)	
5	of which: Small and Medium-sized Enterprises	1.198.734	1.080.168		336.025	118.566		117.352	(52.820)	(24.515)		(17.178)	(28.305)		(28.099)	
6	of which: Collateralised by								,	, ,		, , ,			, ,	
	commercial immovable property	1.085.167	975.269		310.701	109.898		108.811	(47.171)	(21.968)		(16.077)	(25.203)		(25.001)	

The "exposures with forbearance measures" columns above refers to forbearance measures granted post the moratorium date being 29 March 2020. Moratorium refers to the suspension of capital and interest payments until 31 December 2020 for natural persons, self-employed persons and businesses made available for all eligible borrowers with no arrears for more than 30 days as at 29 February 2020. This was passed through a bill in Parliament on 29 March 2020.

COVID-19 Template 2: Breakdown of loans and advances subject to legislative and non-legislative moratoria by residual maturity of moratoria

The table provides a breakdown of subject to legislative and non-legislative moratoria by residual maturity of moratoria with reference date 30 June 2021. The second moratorium length applied is for six months, ending 30 June 2021. Moreover, on this table loans and advances with expired legislative moratoria are reported.

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i
30 Ju	ine 2021					Gross carryi	ng amount			
		Number of		of which	of which		Residua	al maturity of mo	ratoria	
		obligors		legislative	expired		> 3 months	> 6 months	> 9 months	
				moratoria		<= 3 months	<= 6 months	<= 9 months	<= 12 months	> 1 year
			€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000
1	Loans and advances for which moratorium was									
	offered	20.256	2.672.028							
2	Loans and advances subject to moratorium (granted)	20.208	2.658.529	23.477	2.635.053	23.477				
3	of which: Households		1.408.730	10.734	1.397.996	10.734		-		
4	of which: Collateralised by residential immovable property		1.090.993	9.810	1.081.183	9.810				-
5	of which: Non-financial corporations		1.225.461	12.743	1.212.719	12.743				
6	of which: Small and Medium-sized Enterprises		1.142.183	12.743	1.129.441	12.743				
7	of which: Collateralised by commercial immovable property		1.063.650	12.576	1.051.074	12.576				

The table below provides an overview of the volume of loans and advances subject to legislative and non-legislative moratorium by residual maturity of this moratorium as at 31 December 2020. The moratorium length applied was for nine months, ending 31 December 2020.

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i
31	December 2020					Gross carry	ing amount			
		Number of		of which	of which		Residua	al maturity of mo	ratoria	
		obligors		legislative	expired		> 3 months	> 6 months	> 9 months	
				moratoria		<= 3 months	<= 6 months	<= 9 months	<= 12 months	> 1 year
			€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000
1	Loans and advances for which moratorium was									
	offered	21.191	2.792.314							
2	Loans and advances subject to moratorium									
	(granted)	20.687	2.758.376	2.758.376		2.758.376		-		
3	of which: Households		1.472.611	1.472.611		1.472.611				
4	of which: Collateralised by residential immovable									
	property		1.130.545	1.130.545		1.130.545				
5	of which: Non-financial corporations		1.261.873	1.261.873		1.261.873				
6	of which: Small and Medium-sized Enterprises		1.198.734	1.198.734		1.198.734				
7	of which: Collateralised by commercial immovable property		1.085.167	1.085.167		1.085.167				

COVID-19 Template 3: Information on newly originated loans and advances provided under newly applicable public guarantee schemes introduced in response to COVID-19 crisis

The Group has not granted newly originated loans and advances under newly applicable public guarantee schemes introduced in response to COVID-19 crisis, as such scheme had not been voted by the Parliament and hence not introduced up to the date of this report.

		а	b	С	d
30 J	une 2021/31 December 2020	Gross c amo		Maximum amount of the guarantee that can be considered	Gross carrying amount
			of which: forborne	Public guarantees received	Inflows to non- performing exposures
		€'000	€'000	€'000	€'000
1	Newly originated loans and advances subject to public guarantee schemes	-			-
2	of which: Households				
3	of which: Collateralised by residential immovable property				
4	of which: Non-financial corporations				
5	of which: Small and Medium-sized Enterprises				
6	of which: Collateralised by commercial immovable property				

6. INVESTMENT. MARKET AND LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT

6.1 Disclosure of liquidity requirements

Liquidity risk is the risk of a decrease in profits or capital, arising from a weakness of the Bank to meet its immediate obligations, without incurring additional costs. The Group's approach in managing liquidity risk is to ensure, to the extent possible (considering that the main role of the Bank as an intermediary is to accept short term deposits and grant long term loans), that there is adequate liquidity to satisfy its obligations, when they arise, under "normal" circumstances as well as under stress conditions, without the Group incurring any additional costs.

The Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

The Group must comply with the Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) as per the provisions of the Commission Delegated Regulation (EU) 2015/61 (which supplements CRR with regards to the liquidity coverage requirement for Credit Institutions). The LCR was in effect from 1 October 2015 with a regulatory limit of 60%, increasing to 100% from 1 January 2018 when the full phase-in of the requirement was effected.

The table below shows a quantitative analysis of LCR which complements Article 435(1)(f) of Regulation No. 575/2013.

It is noted that according to the Pillar III disclosure requirements, for the calculation of the values shown in the table each quarterly observation is the average of the previous 12 months preceding the end of each quarter.

The Group's Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) increased to 510% in June 2021, compared to 477% at December 2020, and remains well within its regulatory limit of 100%. The main reason for the increase in the LCR ratio was the increase of the total High-Quality Liquid Assets of the Bank, primarily due to the increase in customer deposits and the participation in the TLTRO program (ECB funding). The net outflows of the Bank have remained fairly stable due to the fact that the customer deposit increase is mainly due to retail deposits with a low outflow rate and the ECB funding obtained is of a long-term nature and consequently excluded from the LCR outflows.

Template EU LIQ1 - Quantitative information of LCR

Scope of	consolidation: Consolidated	а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h
€ million		Total	unweighted	l value (ave	rage)	Tota	al weighted	value (aver	age)
EU 1a	Quarter ending on:	30-Jun-21	31-Mar-21	31-Dec-20	30-Sep-20	30-Jun-21	31-Mar-21	31-Dec-20	30-Sep-20
EU 1b	Number of data points used in the	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
	calculation of averages	12	12	12	12	12	12	12	12
HIGH-QU	JALITY LIQUID ASSETS					T	I	T	
1	Total high-quality liquid assets (HQLA)					7.034	6.974	7.211	7.573
CASH - C	OUTFLOWS								
2	Retail deposits and deposits from small business customers, of which:	6.842	6.587	6.318	6.057	432	422	411	407
3	Stable deposits	5.206	4.901	4.574	4.214	260	245	229	211
4	Less stable deposits	1.636	1.686	1.744	1.843	172	177	183	196
5	Unsecured wholesale funding	2.241	2.243	2.298	2.369	1.328	1.351	1.394	1.448
6	Operational deposits (all counterparties) and deposits in networks of cooperative banks	37	39	37	35	9	9	9	8
7	Non-operational deposits (all counterparties)	2.204	2.204	2.261	2.335	1.319	1.341	1.385	1.440
8	Unsecured debt								
9	Secured wholesale funding								
10	Additional requirements	378	375	374	362	33	33	34	33
11	Outflows related to derivative exposures and other collateral requirements	5	5	5	5	5	5	5	5
12	Outflows related to loss of funding on debt products								
13	Credit and liquidity facilities	373	371	369	358	29	29	29	28
14	Other contractual funding obligations	16	16	18	21	1	1	1	1
15	Other contingent funding obligations	955	972	991	1.011	59	60	60	61
16	TOTAL CASH OUTFLOWS					1.854	1.866	1.900	1.950
CASH - I	INFLOWS								
17	Secured lending (e.g. reverse repos)								
18	Inflows from fully performing exposures	303	314	332	342	293	306	324	332
19	Other cash inflows	378	389	404	425	82	86	89	93
EU-19a	(Difference between total weighted inflows and total weighted outflows arising from transactions in third countries where there are transfer restrictions or which are denominated in non-convertible currencies)								
EU-19b	(Excess inflows from a related specialised credit institution)								
20	TOTAL CASH INFLOWS	681	703	737	767	375	392	413	425
EU-20a	Fully exempt inflows								
EU-20b	Inflows subject to 90% cap								
EU-20c	Inflows subject to 75% cap	681	703	737	767	375	392	413	425
							ТОТ	AL ADJUST	ED VALUE
21	LIQUIDITY BUFFER					7.034	6.974	7.211	7.573
22	TOTAL NET CASH OUTFLOWS					1.478	1.475	1.487	1.524
23	LIQUIDITY COVERAGE RATIO (%)					476%	473%	485%	497%

6.1 Disclosure of liquidity requirements (continued)

Concentration of funding sources

The Group places emphasis on the maintenance of stable customer deposits, as they represent its main funding source. This is effectively achieved through the maintenance of good and long-standing relationships of trust with customers and through competitive and transparent pricing strategies, also taking into consideration the liquidity position of the Bank. Furthermore, the Bank does not have any concentration in individual large depositors.

Composition of the institution's liquidity buffer.

The Bank aims to maintain an adequate liquidity buffer, which will allow it not only to meet its obligations as they fall due in a business-as-usual scenario, but also to be able to survive a combined market-wide and idiosyncratic scenario, as defined in the Bank's ILAAP. To determine the minimum required level of liquid assets, the Bank considers the RAF Management Action Trigger levels of Liquidity Risk metrics.

The Bank holds a liquidity buffer in the form of a portfolio of unencumbered, high quality liquid assets which could be monetized quickly in the event that the Bank experiences a liquidity crisis. The Liquidity Buffer is primarily comprised of Central Bank reserves. The rest of the buffer is mainly held in Level 1 high quality securities and some Level 2 securities.

The quality of the liquid assets held by the Bank is safeguarded by the Hellenic Bank Investment Framework (HBIF), which promotes a well-diversified, high credit quality investment portfolio, while placing a limit on non-ECB eligible securities.

Derivative exposures and potential collateral calls

The Bank has a relatively small derivatives portfolio which mainly consists of FX-swaps that are short term. Therefore, any potential collateral calls, which may be the result of either changes in market value of the derivatives or a deterioration in the Bank's credit quality, are not expected to materially affect the liquidity position of the Bank.

Currency mismatch in the LCR

It is noted that for the USD, which is the Bank's foreign currency with material positions, the Bank does not have a mismatch, meaning that it maintains a ratio well above 100%. The Bank has included LCR USD in its Risk Appetite Statement with a risk appetite limit set to 100%.

The Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR)

Additionally, the Bank monitors the Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) which also stems from CRR. NSFR has been developed to provide a sustainable maturity structure of assets and liabilities. It calculates the proportion of available stable funding via the capital and liabilities over required stable funding for the assets. The components of stable funding are not equally weighted.

The Capital Requirements Regulation II (CRR II), the regulation which defines and implements the NSFR for the EU, was finalized in June 2019 and is effective from June 2021, with the regulatory minimum limit of 100%.

The Bank is calculating this ratio on a quarterly basis. The NSFR as of 30 June 2021 stands at 187%, well above the regulatory minimum.

The table below shows a quantitative analysis of NSFR in accordance with Article 451a (3) CRR.

Template EU LIQ2 - Net Stable Funding Ratio

				ı		
30 June 2	2021	a	b	С	d	е
(in 6 1000)				e by residual	maturity	Weighted
(in € '000)		No	< 6 months	6 months	≥ 1yr	value
Available	stable funding (ASF) Items	maturity	HIOHHIS	to < 1yr	-	
4 Available	Capital items and instruments				1.076.324	1.076.324
2	Own funds				1.076.324	1.076.324
3	Other capital instruments				1.076.324	1.076.324
	·		0.070.700	1.529.570	CC4 4C7	44 207 024
4	Retail deposits		9.879.700		661.467	11.397.934
5	Stable deposits		7.930.972	1.431.498	616.330	9.510.676
6	Less stable deposits		1.948.728	98.073	45.137	1.887.258
7	Wholesale funding:		2.407.059	2.316.702	115.683	2.092.270
8	Operational deposits		726			363
9	Other wholesale funding		2.406.333	2.316.702	115.683	2.091.907
10	Interdependent liabilities		-			
11	Other liabilities:				369.842	369.842
12	NSFR derivative liabilities					
13	All other liabilities and capital instruments not included				369.842	369.842
	in the above categories				0001012	
14	Total available stable funding (ASF)					14.936.369
_	stable funding (RSF) Items					
15	Total high-quality liquid assets (HQLA)					987.298
EU-15a	Assets encumbered for a residual maturity of one year					
	or more in a cover pool					
16	Deposits held at other financial institutions for operational purposes		274.056			137.028
17	Performing loans and securities:		200.612	159.172	6.258.640	5.258.164
.,	Performing securities financing transactions with		200:012	1001112	0.200.0.10	0.200.101
18	financial customers collateralised by Level 1 HQLA					
	subject to 0% haircut					
	Performing securities financing transactions with					
19	financial customer collateralised by other assets and					
	loans and advances to financial institutions Performing loans to non- financial corporate clients,					
20	loans to retail and small business customers, and		83.046	13.799	3.444.028	2.975.755
20	loans to sovereigns, and PSEs, of which:		00.010	10.100	0.111.020	2.070.700
	With a risk weight of less than or equal to 35%					
21	under the Basel II Standardised Approach for credit		53.716		457	27.155
	risk					
22	Performing residential mortgages, of which:		2.700	725	1.151.482	753.000
23	With a risk weight of less than or equal to 35% under the Basel II Standardised Approach for credit		1.903	725	1.137.361	740.599
23	risk		1.903	725	1.137.301	740.599
	Other loans and securities that are not in default and					
24	do not qualify as HQLA, including exchange-traded		114.866	144.648	1.663.130	1.529.408
	equities and trade finance on-balance sheet products					
25	Interdependent assets					-
26	Other assets:	-	2.576	407.416	1.342.157	1.546.541
27	Physical traded commodities					
28	Assets posted as initial margin for derivative contracts					
	and contributions to default funds of CCPs					
29	NSFR derivative assets				576	576
30	NSFR derivative liabilities before deduction of				2.000	100
21	variation margin posted All other assets not included in the above categories			A07 446	1.342.157	1.545.865
31 32	Off-balance sheet items		554 16F	407.416		
			554.165		22.730	50.438
33	Total RSF					7.979.469
34	Net Stable Funding Ratio (%)					187%

6.1 Disclosure of liquidity requirements (continued)

The recent coronavirus (COVID-19) worldwide pandemic outbreak and the subsequent lockdowns did not have so far, a significant impact on the Bank's liquidity. Nevertheless, the continued crisis and the likelihood of a renewed pandemic outbreak could potentially affect the Bank's liquidity position in the future. However, even under an extreme stress scenario, the Bank is expected to remain comfortably above its regulatory and risk appetite limits for LCR and NSFR, because of its large liquidity buffer that allows it to withstand liquidity shocks and comfortably ensure its continuity through such a crisis.

6.2 Disclosure of the use of standardised approach for market risk

For calculating the minimum capital requirement, the Group uses the Standardised Approach. The size of the Bank's business subject to market risk is smaller than the thresholds applicable according to the CRR II rules and therefore the Bank continues to use the standardised approach.

Based on this method, the capital requirement is calculated as the sum of the capital requirements on risk positions in interest rates, equities, debt securities, foreign exchange and derivatives, which are part of the trading book, based on predetermined models per risk category.

The table below shows the capital requirements for the trading book, by risk category

Template EU MR1 - Market risk under the standardised approach

		а	а
Amou	ınts (€000)	RWEAs 30 June 2021	RWEAs 31 December 2020
	Outright products		
1	Interest rate risk (general and specific)	728	663
2	Equity risk (general and specific)		
3	Foreign exchange risk		
4	Commodity risk		
	Options		
5	Simplified approach		
6	Delta-plus approach		
7	Scenario approach		
8	Securitisation (specific risk)		
9	Total	728	663

It should be noted that under Article 351 of the CRR, the Bank is required to maintain capital for foreign exchange risk only if its overall net foreign exchange position exceeds 2% of its Own Funds. In the Bank's case, the overall net foreign exchange position was less than 2%, so there was no need to hold capital for foreign exchange risk.

6.3 Disclosure of information on exposures to interest rate risk on positions not held in the trading book (Article 448 CRR)

The table below shows the changes in the Economic Value of Equity (EVE) and Net Interest Income for the Banking book positions. The Net Interest Income sensitivity is calculated for the next 12 months, under a change of ±200 basis points in interest rates. The Economic Value of Equity sensitivity is calculated for interest rate changes under the six standardised scenarios defined by the European Banking Authority (EBA). Both the EVE and the Net Interest Income sensitivity measures are calculated for the significant currencies which are EUR and USD.

Template EU IRRBB1 - Interest rate risks of non-trading book activities

	Changes	in the EVE	Changes in Net Interest Incom					
Amounts (€000)	30 June 2021	31 December 2020	30 June 2021	31 December 2020				
Parallel up	176.375	216.991	32.333	44.594				
Parallel down	(56.374)	(3.117)	(8.148)	(12.194)				
Steepener	86.773	98.615						
Flattener	(49.412)	(43.535)						
Short rates up	10.024	22.707						
Short rates down	(33.097)	1.032						

The largest negative sensitivity of EVE at the end of June 2021 was under the "Parallel Down" scenario and amounted to €56,4 million or 4,6% of the Bank's Tier 1 Capital compared to €43,5 million or 3,6% of the Bank's Tier 1 Capital at the end of December 2020, when the largest negative sensitivity was under the Flattener scenario.

EVE sensitivity from a 2% change in interest rates needs to be below 20% of total Own Funds according to the CRD, while EVE sensitivity from the six prescribed interest rate shock scenarios needs to be below 15% of Tier 1 Capital according to the updated EBA IRRBB Guidelines. The Bank has approved within its risk appetite framework, a limit of 14% of Tier 1 Capital based on EBA's six prescribed interest rate shock scenarios. The Economic Value of Equity sensitivity of the Bank for June 2021 was 4,6% of Tier 1 Capital, well within the regulatory limit and the risk appetite limit.

The maximum one-year loss in Net Interest Income was under the parallel down scenario and was €8,1 million at the end of June 2021 compared to €12,2 million at the end of December 2020.

7. SECURITISATIONS

The Bank holds a portfolio of securitisation positions, classified under its Banking Book. The Bank's investments in bonds are governed by the Hellenic Bank Investment Framework (HBIF) which is reviewed and approved by the Board of Directors on a yearly basis (latest revision was in December 2020). The Framework provides, among others, limits and qualitative guidelines for investing in a diversified bonds portfolio, while also allowing for investments in securitisation positions and restricting investments in re-securitisations. The BoD has approved (under the HBIF) a proportion of the Bank's total bond investments to be in AAA senior securitisation tranches, as part of the efforts to maintain a well-diversified portfolio of bonds.

With respect to securitisations, the Bank has acted only as an investor and has not originated, issued or sponsored any securitisations.

The Bank manages the credit risk stemming from its investments in securitisations through the HBIF, which sets a maximum concentration limit for exposures in securitisations, expressed as a percentage of the Group's CET1 Capital. In addition to the overall exposure limit in securitisations, HBIF sets "Issuer" concentration limits for securitisations, expressed as a percentage on the Group's CET1 capital, duration limits, liquidity limits and other qualitative limits. The "Issuer" concentration limit allows investments only in tranches which are AAA-rated (according to CRR Article 138). Investments in securitisations are performed only if a tranche meets the requirements of Article 405 of CRR as well as Articles 5 and 6 referring to risk retention of Regulation EU 2017/2402 and in specific that the originator, sponsor or original lender has explicitly disclosed to the institution that it will retain, on an ongoing basis, a material net economic interest which, shall not be less than 5%.

Investment Process and Ongoing Monitoring

The Bank's investments in securitisations involve the following process:

- 1. Treasury and Risk Management analyse and review the investment opportunity;
- 2. Investment proposal is discussed at ALCO alongside separate Risk opinion;
- 3. Deal execution and ongoing monitoring of portfolio and limits;
- 4. Limit breach escalation process, if required; and
- 5. Breach rectification, if required.

As described above, in addition to the approved limit framework, before proceeding with an investment in a securitisation position, a relevant investment process is followed, whereby Treasury prepares an investment proposal which is discussed at the Bank's ALCO, alongside Risk's comments. Before approving each investment in a securitisation position, ALCO reviews the structure of each securitisation, the credit quality of the securitised pool of assets, adherence to approved limits, performance of previous securitisations, credit enhancement, adherence with the CRR regulation, the expected yield and Return on Equity of the transaction along with several sensitivities, etc.

Following the approval and execution of each investment, the Bank monitors possible deterioration of the securitisations' risk metrics through the procedures established in HBIF. For example, through the "Early Warning Signals" procedure, the price and credit spread changes of the securities are monitored, while any deviations above trigger levels are communicated to the appropriate management bodies. Similar procedures are in place in the event of changes in the credit ratings or in the outlook of the credit ratings, while the approved breach escalation process is adhered to. In addition, the quality of the underlying collaterals (e.g. default rates, collateralization levels, weighted average rating factors, etc.) supporting the securitisation positions is also actively monitored.

The Bank, as part of its securitisation portfolio monitoring process maintains a subscription to a specialized platform for monitoring and performing scenarios on securitised investments, while also maintaining subscription services to the three largest rating agencies that provide access to the information needed for monitoring securitisation positions.

The risks of securitisation positions are actively monitored and reported to ALCO on a monthly basis and to the Bank's BRMC on a monthly and quarterly basis. Additionally, any breaches in limits or early warnings are escalated in accordance with the breach escalation process.

The Bank calculates the risk weighted exposure amount of a securitisation position by applying the relevant risk weight to the exposure value, where the exposure value equals the accounting value remaining after specific credit risk adjustments have been applied. With respect to calculating risk weighted assets for securitisations, the Bank uses the SEC – ERBA approach, Article 263 for non-STS and Article 264 for STS securitisations of Regulation 2017/2401 except for an exposure in a senior unrated securitisation tranche, for which the Bank has adopted the SEC-SA approach as defined in Article 261 of Regulation 2017/2401.

The securitisation positions held by the Bank as at 30 June 2021 amounted to about €575,2 million, out of which an amount of €167,1 million is classified as Level 2B for liquidity risk and LCR purposes, while the rest are not considered as High-Quality Liquid Assets. The interest rate risk stemming from these positions is monitored as part of the Bank's overall interest rate risk management.

Securitisation Activity of the Current Period (1H2021)

During the first half of 2021, the Bank increased its investments in securitisation positions. As at 30 June 2021, the Bank had a total exposure of €575,2 million (nominal amounts) in securitisation positions, compared to €413,8 million as at 31 December 2020. An amount of €29,7 million refers to an investment in a senior unrated tranche of a securitisation that was exceptionally approved by the Bank's BoD, as the limits included in HBIF do not allow for investments in unrated securitisations. Excluding the investment exceptionally approved by the BoD, the rest of the securitisation positions are investments in the most senior AAA-rated tranches, out of which, €177,9 million are in residential mortgage backed securities (RMBS) which are mainly backed by prime Dutch mortgage loans and €367,6 million are in euro denominated collateralized loan obligations (CLOs). Finally, as at 30 June 2021 the Bank did not have any investments in asset backed commercial paper (ABCP) securities.

All exposures in securitisations are classified as "at Amortised Cost". These positions follow the same accounting treatment as any other item in the relevant category in accordance with IFRS 9, which is effective from 1 January 2018. As at 30 June 2021, there were no off-balance sheet and no outstanding securitisation exposures.

Additional information, based on Article 449a of CRR II, which is applicable from June 2021, is presented in the tables below.

Tables on STS / Non-STS classification (Template EU-SEC1 - Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book) as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Template EU-SEC1 - Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
30 Jun	ne 2021 (€000)			Institutio	n acts as c	riginator			Ins	stitution ac	ts as spon	sor	Ins	stitution ac	ts as inves	tor
			Tradi	tional		Synt	hetic		Tradi	tional			Tradi	tional		
		Ś	of which	Non	of which		of which SRT	Sub- total	STS	Non-STS	Synthetic	Sub- total	STS	Non-STS	Synthetic	Sub- total
1	Total exposures	1	-										167.130	408.028		
2	Retail (total)	1	-										167.130	10.742		
3	residential mortgage	1	-										167.130	10.742		-
4	credit card	-			-											
5	other retail exposures	1	-										-			
6	re-securitisation	I	-		-					-	-		-			-
7	Wholesale (total)	I	-		-					-	-		-	397.285		
8	loans to corporates	-												397.285		
9	commercial mortgage	-														
10	lease and receivables	1											-			-
11	other wholesale	-								-						
12	re-securitisation															

		а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	I	m	n	0
31 De	cember 2020 (€000)			Institutio	n acts as o	originator			Ins	titution ac	ts as spons	sor	Ins	stitution ac	ts as inves	tor
			Tradi	tional		Synt	hetic		Tradi	tional			Tradi	tional		
		S	of which	Non	-STS of which SRT		of which SRT	Sub- total	STS	Non-STS	Synthetic	Sub- total	STS	Non-STS	Synthetic	Sub- total
1	Total exposures												171.810	242.025		
2	Retail (total)												171.810	12.362		
3	residential mortgage												171.810	11.419		
4	credit card			-												
5	other retail exposures			-										943		
6	re-securitisation			-												
7	Wholesale (total)													229.663		
8	loans to corporates													229.663		
9	commercial mortgage			-												
10	lease and receivables															
11	other wholesale															
12	re-securitisation															

Tables on RWAs and Capital Charges (Template EU-SEC4 - Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book and associated regulatory capital requirements - institution acting as investor) as at 30 June 2021 and 31 December 2020:

Template EU-SEC4 - Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book and associated regulatory capital requirements - institution acting as investor

	une 2021	а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	1	m	n	0	р	q
(€00	0)	Exposi	ure values	(by RW b	ands/dedu	ıctions)	Expo	sure value appr	s (by rego bach)	ulatory	RW	EA (by regu	latory app	roach)	(Capital char	ge after	сар
		≤20% RW	>20% to 50% RW	>50% to			SEC- IRBA	SEC-ERBA (including IAA)	SEC-	1250%/ deductions	SEC- IRBA	SEC-ERBA (including IAA)	SEC- SA	1250%/ deductions	SEC- IRBA	SEC-ERBA (including IAA)	SEC- SA	1250%/ deductions
1	Total exposures	545.505			29.653			545.505	29.653			92.388	44.480			7.391	3.558	
2	Traditional securitisation	545.505			29.653			545.505	29.653			92.388	44.480			7.391	3.558	
3	Securitisation	545.505			29.653			545.505	29.653			92.388	44.480			7.391	3.558	
4	Retail underlying	177.873						177.873				18.862				1.509		
5	of which STS	167.130						167.130				16.713				1.337		
6	Wholesale	367.632			29.653			367.632	29.653			73.526	44.480			5.882	3.558	
7	of which STS																	
8	Re-securitisation																	
9	Synthetic securitisation																	
10	Securitisation																	
11	Retail underlying																	
12	Wholesale																	
13	Re-securitisation																	
			1	1	1	1		•	•	_				1		_		
	ecember 2020	а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h	i	j	k	l	m	n	0	р	q
(€00	u)	F		. /h DW h			Expo	osure value		ulatory	DW	T A /b	lata		,	Saultal abau		
		Exposi		> E00/ +o	>100% to			appro SEC-ERBA	oach)			EA (by regu BEC-ERBA		•		Capital char SEC-ERBA		•
		≤20% RW	>20% to 50% RW	100% RW	<1250%	RW/ deductions	SEC- IRBA	(including IAA)	SEC- SA	1250%/ deductions	SEC- IRBA	(including IAA)	SEC- SA	1250%/ deductions	SEC- IRBA	(including IAA)	SEC- SA	1250%/ deductions
1	Total exposures	380.838			32.997			380.838	32.997	-		58.987	49.495	-	-	4.719	3.960	
2	Traditional securitisation	380.838			32.997			380.838	32.997			58.987	49.495		I	4.719	3.960	
3	Securitisation	380.838			32.997			380.838	32.997			58.987	49.495		-	4.719	3.960	
4	Retail underlying	184.172						184.172				19.653				1.572		
5	of which STS	171.810						171.810				17.181				1.374		
6	Wholesale	196.666			32.997			196.666	32.997			39.333	49.495			3.147	3.960	
7	of which STS																	
8	Re-securitisation																	
9	Synthetic securitisation																	
10	Securitisation																	
11	Retail underlying																	
1.1														1				1
12	Wholesale																	

8. LEVERAGE RATIO

The disclosures on Leverage Ratio have been prepared in accordance with the updated Leverage Ratio framework implemented in CRR II.

As per Regulation (EU) No 2019/876 (CRR II) applicable from June 2021 a binding minimum Leverage ratio of 3% is introduced.

According to Article 429 of CRR II, the leverage ratio is calculated as an institution's capital measure divided by the institution's total exposure measure expressed as a percentage.

The leverage ratio of the Group is calculated using two capital measures:

- a) Tier 1 capital: fully phased-in definition.
- b) Tier 1 capital: transitional definition.

According to the Regulation (EU) 2015/62 of the European Parliament and Council dated 10 October 2014, as at 30 June 2021 the Leverage Ratio³⁰, on a transitional basis, for the Group was 6,34% compared to 7,71% as at 31 December 2020. The Leverage Ratio³⁰ on a fully loaded basis for the Group was 6,11% compared to 7,36% as at 31 December 2020.

Factors that had an impact on the leverage ratio during the six-month period ended 30 June 2021

The Group's Leverage ratio³⁰ on a transitional basis, which is above the minimum ratio set at 3% by the amended CRR rules effective from June 2021, has decreased by 137 basis points compared to 31 December 2020 mainly due to the comparatively higher increase in "Leverage ratio total exposure measure".

The main reason for the increase in "Leverage ratio total exposure measure" was the increase in "Other assets" due to the increase in cash and balances with Central Banks mainly as a result of the new TLTRO transaction with ECB of €2,3 billion. In addition, an Add-on for counterparty credit risk for SFTs was included in the Leverage ratio exposure which reduced the ratio further. The methodology for calculating the exposure of derivatives which is included in the "Leverage ratio total exposure measure" has changed according to the CRR II revised rules. However, due to the small size of derivatives in the Bank this has not impacted the Leverage ratio significantly.

_

³⁰ As per the final regulatory submissions excluding unaudited profits for the six-month period ended 30 June 2021.

8.1 Summary reconciliation of accounting assets and leverage ratio exposures

Template EU LR1 - LRSum: Summary reconciliation of accounting assets and leverage ratio exposures

(€000)		30 June 2021	31 December 2020
1	Total assets as per published financial statements	18.478.533	15.856.875
2	Adjustment for entities which are consolidated for accounting purposes but		
	are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation	(122.185)	(111.274)
	(Adjustment for securitised exposures that meet the operational requirements		
3	for the recognition of risk transference)		
	(Adjustment for temporary exemption of exposures to central banks (if		
4	applicable))		
	(Adjustment for fiduciary assets recognised on the balance sheet pursuant to		
	the applicable accounting framework but excluded from the total exposure		
5	measure in accordance with point (i) of Article 429a(1) CRR)		
	Adjustment for regular-way purchases and sales of financial assets subject		<u></u>
6	to trade date accounting		
7	Adjustment for eligible cash pooling transactions		
8	Adjustments for derivative financial instruments	29.309	4.660
9	Adjustment for securities financing transactions (SFTs)	284.727	
10	Adjustment for off-balance sheet items (i.e. conversion to credit equivalent		
	amounts of off-balance sheet exposures)	368.074	338.467
	(Adjustment for prudent valuation adjustments and specific and general		
11	provisions which have reduced Tier 1 capital)		
	(Adjustment for exposures excluded from the total exposure measure in		
EU-11a	accordance with point (c) of Article 429a (1) CRR)		
	(Adjustment for exposures excluded from the total exposure measure in		
EU-11b	accordance with point (j) of Article 429a (1) CRR)		
12	Other adjustments	(15.168)	20.885
13	Total leverage exposure measure	19.023.290	16.109.613

8.2 Leverage ratio common disclosure

Template EU LR2 - LRCom: Leverage ratio common disclosure

		CRR leverage ra	
(€000)		30 June 2021	31 December 2020
	On-balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives and SFTs)		
1	On-balance sheet items (excluding derivatives, SFTs, but including collateral)	18.403.912	15.818.111
2	Gross-up for derivatives collateral provided, where deducted from the		
	balance sheet assets pursuant to the applicable accounting framework		
3	(Deductions of receivables assets for cash variation margin provided in		
	derivatives transactions) (Adjustment for securities received under securities financing transactions		
4	that are recognised as an asset)		
5	(General credit risk adjustments to on-balance sheet items)		
6	(Asset amounts deducted in determining Tier 1 capital)	(64.216)	(52.033)
7	Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives and SFTs)	18.339.696	15.766.078
	Derivative exposures	10.555.050	13.700.070
	Replacement cost associated with SA-CCR derivatives transactions (ie net		
8	of eligible cash variation margin)		303
ELL 0	Derogation for derivatives: replacement costs contribution under the simplified		
EU-8a	standardised approach		
9	Add-on amounts for potential future exposure associated with SA-CCR		
9	derivatives transactions		
EU-9a	Derogation for derivatives: Potential future exposure contribution under the		
	simplified standardised approach		
EU-9b	Exposure determined under Original Exposure Method	30.793	4.764
10	(Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade exposures) (SA-CCR)		
EU-10a	(Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade exposures) (simplified standardised approach)		
EU-10b	(Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared trade exposures) (Original Exposure Method)		
11	Adjusted effective notional amount of written credit derivatives		
12	(Adjusted effective notional offsets and add-on deductions for written credit derivatives)		
13	Total derivatives exposures	30.793	5.067
	Securities financing transaction (SFT) exposures		
14	Gross SFT assets (with no recognition of netting), after adjustment for sales accounting transactions		
15	(Netted amounts of cash payables and cash receivables of gross SFT assets)		
16	Counterparty credit risk exposure for SFT assets	284.727	
EU-16a	Derogation for SFTs: Counterparty credit risk exposure in accordance with Articles 429e (5) and 222 CRR		
17	Agent transaction exposures		
EU-17a	(Exempted CCP leg of client-cleared SFT exposure)		
18	Total securities financing transaction exposures	284.727	
	Other off-balance sheet exposures		
19	Off-balance sheet exposures at gross notional amount	1.327.151	807.835
20	(Adjustments for conversion to credit equivalent amounts)	(959.077)	(469.367)
21	(General provisions deducted in determining Tier 1 capital and specific provisions associated associated with off-balance sheet exposures)		

Template EU LR2 - LRCom: Leverage ratio common disclosure (continued)

	CRR leverage		
(€000)		30 June 2021	31 December 2020
	Excluded exposures		
EU-22a	(Exposures excluded from the total exposure measure in accordance with point (c) of Article 429a (1) CRR)		1
EU-22b	(Exposures exempted in accordance with point (j) of Article 429a (1) CRR (on and off-balance sheet))	-	
EU-22c	(Excluded exposures of public development banks (or units) - Public sector investments)	-	
EU-22d	(Excluded exposures of public development banks (or units) - Promotional loans)		
EU-22e	(Excluded passing-through promotional loan exposures by non-public development banks (or units))		
EU-22f	(Excluded guaranteed parts of exposures arising from export credits)		
EU-22g	(Excluded excess collateral deposited at triparty agents)		
EU-22h	(Excluded CSD related services of CSD/institutions in accordance with point (o) of Article 429a (1) CRR)	-	
EU-22i	(Excluded CSD related services of designated institutions in accordance with point (p) of Article 429a (1) CRR)	1	1
EU-22j	(Reduction of the exposure value of pre-financing or intermediate loans)		-
EU-22k	(Total exempted exposures)		-
	Capital and total exposure measure		
23	Tier 1 capital	1.205.990	1.241.381
24	Total exposure measure	19.023.290	16.109.613
	Leverage ratio		
25	Leverage ratio(%)	6,34%	7,71%
EU-25	Leverage ratio (excluding the impact of the exemption of public sector investments and promotional loans) (%)	6,34%	7,71%
25a	Leverage ratio (excluding the impact of any applicable temporary exemption of central bank reserves) (%)	6,34%	7,71%
26	Regulatory minimum leverage ratio requirement (%)	3,00%	n/a
EU-26a	Additional own funds requirements to address the risk of excessive leverage (%)	0,00%	n/a
EU-26b	of which: to be made up of CET1 capital	0,00%	n/a
27	Leverage ratio buffer requirement (%)	0,00%	n/a
EU-27a	Overall leverage ratio requirement (%)	3,00%	n/a
Choice on transitional arrangements and relevant exposures			
EU-27b	Choice on transitional arrangements for the definition of the capital measure	Trans	itional

8.3 Split-up of on balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives, SFTs and exempted exposures)

Template EU LR3 - LRSpl: Split-up of on balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives, SFTs and exempted exposures)

		CRR Leverage Ratio Exposures	
(€000)		30 June 2021	31 December 2020
EU-1	Total on-balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives, SFTs, and exempted exposures), of which:	18.403.913	15.818.112
EU-2	Trading book exposures	-	
EU-3	Banking book exposures, of which:	18.403.913	15.818.112
EU-4	Covered bonds	642.258	643.523
EU-5	Exposures treated as sovereigns	8.802.650	6.231.785
EU-6	Exposures to regional governments, MDB, international organisations and PSE, not treated as sovereigns	5.947	4.789
EU-7	Institutions	1.508.700	1.527.765
EU-8	Secured by mortgages of immovable properties	1.599.393	1.529.192
EU-9	Retail exposures	2.087.383	2.215.318
EU-10	Corporates	1.513.321	1.538.784
EU-11	Exposures in default	792.051	809.890
EU-12	Other exposures (eg equity, securitisations, and other non-credit obligation assets)	1.452.210	1.317.066

9. MINIMUM REQUIREMENT FOR OWN FUNDS AND ELIGIBLE LIABILITIES

The Bank, within the framework of the Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive (BRRD), is subject to the minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL). The framework, which entered into effect on 1 January 2016, provides authorities with a credible set of tools to intervene sufficiently early and quickly in an unsound or failing institution so as to ensure the continuity of the institution's critical financial and economic functions, while minimising the impact of an institution's failure on the economy and financial system. This is achieved by requiring banks to have a funding structure with a certain proportion of liabilities that can be written off or converted into equity in the event of a bank failure (that is: "bailed in"). Such liabilities, in combination with equity, are known as MREL.

On 27 June 2019, as part of the reform package for strengthening the resilience and resolvability of European banks, the BRRD II came into effect and it has recently been transposed into National Law. Further to the above, certain provisions on MREL have been introduced in CRR II, which also came into force on 27 June 2019, as part of the reform package and took immediate effect.

The Bank has received a formal notification (the Decision) from the Single Resolution Board (SRB) in April 2021, of its final decision for the binding minimum requirement for own funds and eligible liabilities (MREL) for the Bank.

According to the draft decision, the minimum MREL requirement for the Bank is set at 24,10% of risk weighted assets (RWAs) and 5,91% of leverage ratio exposure (LRE) and this must be met by 31st December 2025. Furthermore, the Bank must comply with an interim requirement of 16,57% of RWAs and 5,91% of LRE by 1st January 2022. The own funds used by the Bank to meet the combined buffer requirement (CBR) will not be eligible to meet its MREL requirements expressed in terms of risk-weighted assets.

Having been provided with interim and final MREL targets by 1 January 2022 and by 31 December 2025, respectively, the Bank is in the process of establishing a Euro Medium Term Note (EMTN) program of a €1,5 billion size in order to initiate its MREL issuance by year-end 2021. Any decision regarding the type of MREL to be issued as well as the issuance amount will based on market conditions and investor appetite at the relevant time.

The MREL requirement for the final target to be met by 31 December 2025 is expected to change over time due to: (a) possible changes in regulatory capital requirements and/or (b) changes in the financial position of the Bank (such as changes in RWAs, own funds, non-performing exposures). The Bank anticipates that the MREL requirement will be assessed and set on an ongoing basis.

The provisions on disclosures on MREL, as published by the EBA and the SRB, apply from 1st January 2024 at the earliest and the first reference date for reporting in accordance with the implementing technical standards is the 30 June 2021.

10. 2021 ECB SREP STRESS TEST

The Bank was selected to participate in the ECB SREP Stress Test of 2021. The 2020 ECB SREP Stress Test exercise was postponed to 2021, to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on the EU banking sector and to prioritise operational continuity, in line with the announcement of 12 March 2020 regarding the postponement of the 2020 ECB stress test exercise. As in 2016 and in 2018, in execution of its mandate and in close cooperation with the national competent authorities, the ECB runs two stress-testing exercises – the EBA EU-wide stress test and the ECB SREP stress test, to assess the resilience of financial institutions to adverse market developments. The results of these exercises are factored into its overall assessment within the Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process (SREP).

The 2021 Stress test exercise was launched on the 29th of January 2021 and results were published by the ECB on the 30th of July 2021.

APPENDIX A – LIST OF TABLES/TEMPLATES

Table/Template	Section
COVID-19 Template 1: Information on loans and advances subject to legislative and non-legislative moratoria	5.6
COVID-19 Template 2: Breakdown of loans and advances subject to legislative and non-legislative moratoria by residual maturity of moratoria	5.6
COVID-19 Template 3: Information on newly originated loans and advances provided under newly applicable public guarantee schemes introduced in response to COVID-19 crisis	5.6
Template EU CC1 - Composition of regulatory own funds	4.2
Template EU CC2 - Reconciliation of regulatory own funds to statement of financial position in the financial statements	3
Template EU CCyB1 - Geographical distribution of credit exposures relevant for the calculation of the countercyclical buffer	4.4.1
Template EU CCyB2 - Amount of institution-specific countercyclical capital buffer	4.4.2
Template EU CQ1 - Credit quality of forborne exposures	5.4.2.1
Template EU CQ2 - Quality of forbearance	5.4.2.2
Template EU CQ3 - Credit quality of performing and non-performing exposures by past due days	5.4.1.1
Template EU CQ4 - Quality of non-performing exposures by geography	5.4.1.3
Template EU CQ5 - Credit quality of loans and advances to non-financial corporations by industry	5.4.1.4
Template EU CQ6 - Collateral valuation - loans and advances	5.4.1.5
Template EU CQ7 - Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes	5.4.1.7
Template EU CQ8 - Collateral obtained by taking possession and execution processes - vintage breakdown	5.4.1.8
Template EU CR1 - Performing and non-performing exposures and related provisions	5.4.1.2
Template EU CR1-A - Maturity of exposures	5.4.1.9
Template EU CR2a - Changes in the stock of non-performing loans and advances and related net accumulated recoveries	5.4.1.6
Template EU CR3 - CRM techniques overview: Disclosure of the use of credit risk mitigation techniques	5.2
Template EU CR4 – Standardised approach – Credit risk exposure and CRM effects	5.3
Template EU CR5 – Standardised approach	5.3
Template EU IRRBB1 - Interest rate risks of non-trading book activities	6.3
Template EU KM1 - Key metrics template	2
Template EU LIQ1 - Quantitative information of LCR	6.1
Template EU LIQ2 - Net Stable Funding Ratio	6.1
Template EU LR1 - LRSum: Summary reconciliation of accounting assets and leverage ratio exposures	8.1
Template EU LR2 - LRCom: Leverage ratio common disclosure	8.2
Template EU LR3 - LRSpl: Split-up of on balance sheet exposures (excluding derivatives, SFTs and exempted exposures)	8.3
Template EU MR1 - Market risk under the standardised approach	6.2
Template EU OV1 - Overview of risk weighted exposure amounts	5.1

APPENDIX A - LIST OF TABLES/TEMPLATES

Table/Template	Section
Template EU-SEC1 - Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book	7
Template EU-SEC4 - Securitisation exposures in the non-trading book and associated regulatory capital requirements - institution acting as investor	7
Template IFRS 9 / Article 468 - Fully Loaded - Comparison of institutions' own funds and capital and leverage ratios with and without the application of transitional arrangements for IFRS 9 or analogous ECLs, and with and without the application of the temporary treatment in accordance with Article 468 CRR	4.3
Template EU CCR1 – Analysis of CCR exposure by approach	5.5
Template EU CCR2 – Transactions subject to own funds requirements for CVA risk	5.5
Template EU CCR3 – Standardised approach – CCR exposures by regulatory exposure class and risk weights	5.5
Template EU CCR5 – Composition of collateral for CCR exposures	5.5